HISTORY OF THE PIKF NATIONAL FOREST

INTROZUCTION

The stories, experiences and faots which are come
piled and inocluded in a history of this nature are gethered
from many sources. Some of the information is seoured firste
hand while much of it has been retold and repested which faots
tend to change the original inoident or experiencs more or
loss.

At best only a limited amount o material ocan be
seocured whether from the 61d settlers or their cescendents
and much veluable information will never be obtained theraeby
losing it forever,

The material used in the following artiole was se=
oured by the rangers, supervisor, assistent supervisor and
clerk from "old timers™ who either live on or near the forest
at present or lived there in the past and from newspaper and
nmagazine srticless Considershle time was spent ‘n securing
the deta. Perhaps if more time had been availeble the result
would be a better history then i3 possible with the present
material,

EARLY LEGENDARY

Indians:

There is not a great deel of history about the
Indians who inhebited the region inoluded in the forest that
sould be secured. It seems that the aborizines had moved to
other parts soon after the first white settlers ceme., The
information secured is rether vegue and unauthentio.

Conflicts with the Indians marked the early his=
tory of the place. The Utes, short and thick set, lived in
the mountein valleys and parks up the Pass. The plains were
held by various tribes of Missouri Indiens, particulerly
Pawnees, Arapshoes, Cheuennes and Siouxe They were tall and
excsllent horsemen. These barbariane pursued a perennial
feud in whioh the Utes, swooping down from the mounteins,
were generelly successful and carried off the ponies and
women of their enemies.



" being taken unewares and most of thelr ponies captured, were

With the whites the Indians were at first friendly
but hostilities began with the messacre of the Hunget family
in 1384« The outbreeak of war threw the inhabitanis of 0ld
Town into a panic and they sought refuge in a log house while
agriculture was continued by men under armse. The Indians
comuitted a pood deal of promiscuous robbery and murder. The
federal government bending all its energles to the suppression -
of the rebéllion could not send aid, but euthority wes pd
given to reise three reziments of Colorado voluntesras under
the territorial government and to these =1 Paso county cone
tributed its quotes In November the troops were moved a ainat
the Indians merching down the Arkensas Valley and thence to
Send Creek, where they surprised them in cemps The Indians,

compelled to fight on foot and over five hunired of thelr
warriors were killed. Some of the Indiern womer and children
did not escape the slaugnter., The whites had 12 killed and
40 woundede The combstants on both sides were about equal.

The trouble ocontirnued in the three following yesrse
In 1868 & soouting party of twenty-eight was surrounded oy
Indians end fought them in pits whioch they dug with their
knives. They managed to send infermation of their peril to
the settlements and the Incians retired, killing such strage
zZling, settlers as they could reach. There were no more im-
portant Indian fights.

The Indian question was settled by the construction
of the rsilways, which rapidly developed the white settlements
and drove away the buffelo &nd antelopee

Clear (Creek was a favorite route of the Indians
from ¥iddle and South Parks, and they left in many places
Agate ohippingse It wes said thay used a spot between Georga=-
town and Green lake as & burial place, but no evidence has
been secured to establish the faot.

In 1859 Willian Slaughter, Dr. Shank and Bert
Kennedy were out on a prospecting trip near it. Evans, when
they were attacked by Indians and Shank and Kenuddy “illed.

General Framont ancd the Utes had their lergest bate~
tle in Utes Pass on the mouth of French Creek in front of the
Cusaock ranch end on the flets which lie south of there to the
Iron Spring.




The South Park country origirslly belonged to the Ute Indians.
It was one of their mein hunting grounds. For & number of years after
Pairplaey was established it was the principel trading point for the
Indians until they were pleced cn the reservation. It was & common sight
to see & band of 30C cemped across the river f{rom Fairpleay., There was no
trouble between the Indians and the white people in this country. The
present site of Garo is an old battleground of the Ute and Arapaho Indians.




(Following data given by S. i« Derby)

Ute Indians came down through the Tarryall region
from the western slopes in the early deys. They would oocme
through in Sands of three hundred or four hundrea going to
the plaing country around Pueblo encd Cenon Citys At one time
Marksbury, & rancher in .‘arksbury Gulch, had a horse he had
traded for a Ute pony. One band of Indianas took the horse,
while passing the ranch, the owner “eing away at the tine.
Marksbury missec ths horze on his return and followed the
Indians out to Four 'ile Creek, where he boldly rocs into
cemp, securzd his horse and started away with ite. All the
Indisns wera in their tepees &t the itime. He was shot from
his horse from one of the tepeess He lay where he fell for
about twenty~four hours; then some of his friends took him
BWaYe

They were generally gzood natured ané w=ll behaved
but at times stole quite a few small articles and food sup-
pliese.

(Following data by Hrec. Ce So Allen)

The Utes same up in the spring and beok in the
falls They went over to the White River country for summer
hunting. They usually kept on the move, camping at nizht
onlys They would bunch their horses in the gulches in care
of a ni ht herders The bands would contein three hundred
or four hundired Indians.

Ce S. Allen put in & garden and reised quites & few
vegzetables when they first rettled, It consisted of pota-
toez, rutabages, turnips, cerrote, cabbage, onions, lettuce
and redishes. ur. Allen and the larger boys steyed up all
night di,;ging vegetebles on one oocasion when about three
hundred Utes camped in the first gulzh a“ove the houses
llowever, ths Indians 3id not bother them. Next morning the
chief of the perty stopped st the fence and seocured enocugh
to load himself end saddle pony, but motioned the other In=-
dians to keep moving.

On another ocoasion & big buok came to the Aoor
begzing for eatss ¥rs. Allen was working up some butter at
the time. After getting something to eat the Indian showed
interest end suricsity sbout the butter. VWhen asked if he
wented some he grunted epprovale Hrs. Allen “ixed up e good
big bell of it and breeking off some ceabbage leaves wrapped
it up and hended it to hime He immediately pulled the leaves
off, would not listen to any interference end slipped the
ball of butter down insicde his blankets No doubt he wonder=
8¢ whoere it disappeared later one
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The Indians were always bezging for something to
eat and would eat et svery house if they could get somethings
They seldom stole anything and no one in that region was
harmede. They never stopped to hunt in the Tarryall countrys.

Exglorers

v The firat Americen explorer of the region was
Lieutenent Zebuleor 4. Plke who was sent out in 1808, shortly
after the United States aoquired the territory from Franoce.
He left St. Louis on the iwenty=fifth of June and camped at
the foot of the Peak just five months later. He sighted the
Peak on the fifteenth of NovembLer end deceived by the pecuw
liar atmosphere, expected to arrive at the bese in & few cays'
Journey, but it was nut until the twenty-fifth of the month
thet he resched ite he oalled it the ™fexiocan Hountain" and
vainly sttempted to ascend its snowy heightse He met meny
hardships with heroic courege but they seem to have given
him & bad opinion of the country, which he declared to be
barren eight months of the year and uninhabiteble to such a
degree that it formed a natursl, and as he thought, & desire
able barrier to the westward expansion of our settlements.
Hls rather euphonious name became sttachsd to the greet
mountain on mccount of this explorstions

Pike wasp sent out by the United Stetes government
to explore the headwsters of the South Platte and Arkansas
rivers. He visited the rezion now included in the forest
and Pikes Peak, the most widely known mountain in Colorado,
if not in the entire Rooky Mountein systems

The next visit worthy of mention weg that of Lisu=~
tensnt Long in 1819, 1In 1843 ceme Fremont the "Pathfinder™.
He exemined the reglon with some care, &nd hetter informed
then Pike, he regerded it es posseesing greet possibilities
as & graging and agricultural courtrye. Ruxton, an Englishman,
stopped in his wanderings at this placec in 1847, and his mem=-
ory is preserved in the name of Ruxton Creek, a tributary to
Fountain., Ruxton frequently mentlons Ute Pass and states that
it was the principal line of travel to end from the f~uth Perk

~for all the Indian trives of this region at the time of his

arrival as well es previously hereto.

Traders

The first white inhabltant eppears to have heen a
pionser and trader, Jimmey Hayes by namo, but more commonly
known as "Jimmey". He came in 1833 and entered into e steady
trade with the Indianse Many years after he was sssassineated
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by & band of eleven Hexicans who looted his campe This was
& sad blow to the Indiens, to whom he had bheen & faltnful
purveyor of the goods of civilization, especially whiskey,
end they pursued the marauding "greasers” and killed them.

SETTLEMENTS

Minigﬁ

That gold mining was oarried on in the Clear Creek
rezicn many years previous to its oocoupation in 1869 was evie
denced to the [irst gold hunters by the discovery of old
drifte in the banks of the oreek at numerous places near Idaho
Springse Whetner the mining was done by the followere of
Coronado, or more recently by Hexiocans, can only be conjec~
tured.

The "Western Mountaineer" of October 25, 1860, rives
an sccount of the finding of a skeleton of a man on Soda Creek
by ilowe and ¥iner while st work on their claime It was found
at & depth of twenty-two fest below the surface and in good
"pay cirt™s The sieleton we- in a rood state of preservetion
and was lying face downward in a bed of loam, gravel, sand and
boulders, Two feat below the skeleton were found the trunk,
limbs and roots of o ysllow pine. The “ind was two hundred
yards southeast of the sode springss

Eqrly prospectors discovered a shaft sunk to a depth
of twenty~five feet or more on ifill Creek, and old kettles and
rusted implements of various kinds.

Mre. Fo Lo Pecx of Georgatown, when on & trip to
Argentine Pass in the early 60's, noticed a pile of rocks
raised by human hmade on ths summit of the Pass, probably as
shields from observation. S8imiler piles were aseen on Jonas
Pass and on ¥i1ll Creek.

The prospectors of '59 founc & cabin near the rme
pire Station in a state of decay. 1t was probably the home
of a trappers. They also found e trepper and & squaw 1lving
in a small oave near [daho Springs.

An old trapper named Rufus Be Sege mmde a trip toe-
ward the head of Vesques Fork (Clear Creek) in the winter of
1843«4 and found mineral which he believed to contain gold.

Gold was first discovered in January 1563, in the
eastern Rocky Mountains by e party from the Boulder settlement
on South Boulder Cresks Near the close o April of the same
year, George Jackson, an old Celifornisn miner, also found

gold along a tributary of South Clear Creek near the present
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town site of Ideho Springs.

The grand discovery, and that which confirmed the
reputed wealth of the country, was made in Yay 1869, In 1867
John He Gregory left his home in the mining district of Georgis
bound for the Frager River .old mines of British Columbia.
He had proceeded ns far as Ft. laranie (Wyoming) in 1368,
when by some mes&ns he wes detained until the following springe.
When sbout ready to resume his journey to the Pacifioc he was
induoed by reports from the Plkes Peak country to return south-
waré to try his luocke

He followad Clear Creek from the town of Gollen up
into the mountains as far as where the city of Blackhawk now
stands. Indioations of gold ceused him to strike up a gulch
tributary to the fork of Clear (Cresks e was slone and be=
fore he could fairly test the value of the :sulch he was over~
teken by a snow storm, and nearly p-risnedes When the s.oram
ceased he was ohliged to return to the valley, or country at
the base of the mountains, for provisions. lHe then induced
Wilkes Defrees to return with him to the mounteins andé they
reached the spot after & ‘edious jcurney of thres days. It
was the sixth day of Yay, 1869 Gregory climbed the hill
where he believed the wash, or zold dirt, would naturally
come from, soraped awey the greass and leaves and filled his
gold pan with ¢irt and took it down to the ruleh. Upon pan~
ning it down, there was about $4.00 worth of zold in it,

The seventh of May they wasned out 340.00 worth of ;old and
then loft for Auraria to ot their friends. Tha digaovery

was made on what was afterwsrds known as claim No. 5 on the
Gregory lode.

The rioh find of Gregory set the peonle of the
pleins towns, then filled with new arrivels from the sest,
wild with exoltement and ceused s steampece for the iregory
dizrings as they were afterwards oalled. As the oanon of
Clear Creek was impessible for most of the way, other routes
were found necessary to reach the desirsd loocality. These
lay over almost impasseble mountains covered with timber and
down into revines which necessitated the orossing of other
and stil]l higher mountains.

As the summer of 1859 advanced the wealth of Colo=~
redo's gold veins and gulches bsoame more and more apparent.
Over 18,000 men were ocongregated in Sregory, Russell and tribe
utary gulchog, and vany of them wer: ncoumulating weslth rep-
1dly, but everythin; valuable was soon preempted snd large
numbers were forced to hunt their fortunee elsewhere,
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M Green Russell and his “rothers, "Doo™ and Oliver
Fussell, with a party of Georgians, were among the early are
rivals at the Gregory digsinge Some time later Russell and
his party orossed over the southern portion of the county
snd located in the gulch that atill bears the name of the
leader. Russell, being perfectly satisflied with the yleld
of these gulch or placer diggings, remained in that locality
for three or lour years. He beocame convinced in May 18859
that there was not sufficient water to mine with profit for
more then one or two months in the spring of the yesr., The
miners, generally, had become alermed et the soarcity of
water, knowing that gulech diggings were comparetively worth-
less without ite. HRussell and a few others began, therefore,
to explore the country with & view to finding a stream of
water that could be brought to these mines by means of a
ditche As & result the heac of Fall River was found ss a
practiceble point from whioh to obtain the desired water
supply by means of a twelve mile ditich end & flume, con-
structed around the mountain sides. The ditch (Consolidated
Diteh Company) was completed in 1860 at an estimatec cost
of $100,000 and soon safter & thousand men were zulch mining
in Russell and its immedisate vicinity.

At that time populous villegea wers located at
Central City, Mountain City, Bleokhewk end st other locels
itieg.

The first orgenization of the Gragory Distrioct
took place on the sixteenth of May, 1868, when there wure
but sixteen men in campe. By June first of the same year the
osmp haed increasecd to eight hundred or one thousand mene.

The Nevede district was set of on Auguet 1, 1860, the Rus-
sell district on August 16, 1269, and the Central City die-
triot in the summer of 1860,

The boom conditions existing throughout this re-
gion in the early deys are well illustrated by the mining lo~
catlions made and the numver of mills and stamps at work,

In these tires & mining claim was only one hundred feet long
and fifty feet wide, and it is estimated that not less then
one hundred thousand claims were registered within and adja=
ocent to the zold belt. o one has sver attempted to check
up the entries, but in the three years prior to the estshlisghe
ment of Gilpin County in 18682, the written desoriptions of
looations filled over e hundred record books, whioch are now
on file at the courthouse in Centrsl City. In addition to
these, from 18682 to 1915, approximately 25,000 lode oclaims
end tunrel and mill sites have been recordedes A record of
the number of mills and stemps operating in and around Cen~
trel City in 1863 shows 81 mills and 9€5 stempse
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The first silver=~besring ore found in the county
was on Fall River during the summer of 1860, It is probable
that Silver City, the neme given the cemp et the head of the
stream, was derived from this discoveryas

Silver had been suddenly discovered in febulous
values at Leadville in the famous Californiu Gulche This
disclosure of carbonate of lead ores carrying silver in 1874
marked the beginning of a new ¢ra for Colorudoe A party of
men in 1860 had left the congested section around the "Greg-
ory digzinzs™ in Gilpin County and crossed the Park range of
mounteins and prospeoted along the banks of the stresms in
the loose soil. At the head of a wooded creek they found
rich deposits of golde They owlled their “diggings"™ Celifor-
nia Gulch, doubtless among thelr number were many who had
gought fortunes in '49 on the Secremento.

However, California Gulch as & golc field had
lasted only about five years. Part of it was enormously
productive but water was the problem, for, of ocourse, zold
was then only extracted by washing. As much ms & thousend
dollers a dey wes teken out by those favored by fortune, and
one company's yiéld was one hundred thousand dollers in sime
ty dayss Within a few months five thousand people had flocked
to the campe They were reckless ard improvident men. Rlches
scemed 8o easy, tc save would seem niggerdly. As e result
gambling dens end vice houses sprang upe

After pne year went by Leadville hed seen its best
gold days slthough desultory mining continued for several
years, The year 1866 found the camp practically deserteda
Only the Printer Boy mine owned by Je. Marshall Paul of Phil~
adelphis kept the interest up in that section.

Nothing but silver had been found in promising quan=
tities elsewhere in Colorado ard that too before the activie-
ties that were about to begin in the Leacdville district, 8ile
ver lodes ware first discovered in Summitt County in the '60's.
Then rioch deposits were found on MoClsllan Mountein in 1864.
Silver mills were established at Georgetown end in 1872 a mare
ket was found for high~-grade silver ore in Germeny. Again
Georgetown sprang into the limelight. Once the center of
gold digrings, it had, in the yeer of Y63, lost its every
citisen but one, for such is the possible fate of mining
towns. Two miles ebove Georgetown was looated the camp of
Silver Plume theat hes never ceagsed to deserve its name,.




George and Navid Griffith, who were members of the
Plattsmouth party that reached Cherry Creek on the twentye
fifth of October, 1888, wen®t to the Gregory dig-ings the
following year, but were toc late to locate s good claime
They sterted on a prospecting trip and in June, 1868, dis~
covered the [riffith lodes They bullt the first cabin in the
new oamp, which was christened Georgutown,

The Purner and Silver lodes wers loceted soon ale
+ter the discovery of the Griffith, by George Adams and R. M.
Barker.

We Ne Byers, editor of the Rooky Mountain News,
waa &t the Chicago Creek diggings in Mey, 1868, and in his
editorial correspondence stated that the first discovery of
gold in that region wes on the tenth of lay, 1858. The exe
tent of the cdigginge was two by five miles. In June, 1859,
Mr. Byers made & seoond trip up Clesr Creek and got as far
as the Empire station and ascended Dougles Yountein. He
desoribed the trip as exceedingly difficult on acocount of
brush ané fallen timbers

In August 1868, ¥r. Syers made a third trip up
Clear Treek, acconpanied by He J« Craham, delegate to Con=
gress, C. ¥iltse of Omeha end C. Froefre of Switserlend.
They arrived at Georgetown, which had already been nemed,
on the twentyesixth of August, and found five men and a boy
theres Several discoveries were being worked. George
Griffith had stempeded to a reported rich find in the norths
After exemining the propertiee the party passed on over the
renges

In Auguat, 1859, John S. Cates, subsequeatly sher=
iff of the county, with a compenion prospected up Clear Creek
and camped near the present site of the FPhelps house, which
was & gressy moedow surrounded by learge treess Griffith and
Leavenworth mountains and the gulches were heavily timbered
and game war shundant,

The Jackson district had three hundred men &t work
by the end of ¥ay 1860, who were making three to five dollars
per aaye. Later companies were orgenigec for ths purpowe of
fluming the oreek and getting at its bed, but with. meager ree
turnse At one time fifty slulces were in opsration on Spane
ish Bere ‘
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Downieville distriot was organiszed July 20, 1869,
by Colonel Sam MolLeon, president, Edwarc James, recorder,
and Wilson E., Sisty and Je. Goldsferry.

Payne's Bar district was organised Kovember 10,
1869, The ocamp was ocslled Burtonville after Ir. T« X.
Burtons The Enterprise Town Company of Payne's Bar surveyed
into lots a town site and nemed it on the twenty-first of

3 July-

_Jackson distrioct was without organization until
1860, but probably by common consent John Norwood aoted es
recorder. The first location recorded was that of Williem
E. Allen, dated September 7, 1869, )eetinga were held by
the miners st various times, however, to re-ulsate affairs.
On the ninth of ey they adopted the followin; rules. "Each
oleim shell be fifty feet front by two hundred fifty feet
deepi Every claim shall be marked and staked with at least
two stakes, and shall be improved within ten days after
taking. The disgcoverers of new dig;ings shall be entitled
to one extra claim each.

Georgetown was the first mining ocemp in Clear
Creek county to be given a namse. The oounty was ocalled
Mountein Countys Idaho Springs wes ocslled Seaoremento. Are
gentine Pass was known as Sanford Pass while Mill Cresek was
called Walden Fork until 1860 when it was changed. Saore=
mento was renamed in the summer of 1860 and celled "Idahoe"
and later "Ideshoe City".

A news oorrespondent writing from Idshoe City,
Ootober 14, 1860, saids "This plece dates its rise end
progress from about the first of April, when inatead of
five large vwiety stores, double the number of whiskey
shops, a first class hotel, and a hundred end fifty dwele
lings, ite only boast was three log ocsbins, one of whioch
was the only grooery store, owned by the populer ector man,
S, D. Hunter. About this time tir. Doherty, another theater
celebrity, met with that success in mining which brought on
him the universal complaint always ending with the old sew,
'a fool for luckl' Then Illinois bar beoame known as the
riochest thing in the mountains and, of course, the little
insignifioant Saoremento burst forth from its chryselis ine
to the blooming fullfledgzed Idahoe."

A newsgpaper oorrespondent made the statement that
three thousand persons were engaged in mining around Idahoe
in July, neerly sll of whom left for the states in the full,
O« Jo Hollister spys in his ™iines of Colorado®™, that guleh
bar and plecer mining as a business of importance died out
in Clear Creek County in 1860,
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On the twenty=fifth of June a company composed of
twenty-one men preempted 640 aocres of land for the town site
of Georgetown,

A convention was held at Golden October 9, 18860,
for the objest of petitioning Congress for a territorial
government, at whioch Idahoe was represented by T. T. Prosser,
¥W. Feamilton, Fox Defendorf and L. W. Blissj; Spanish Bar by
L. G. Turnley, 8. Hull, De 8o mﬁ., De Re Yyers and G, P
Boyces The Spanish Bar delegetion withdrew from the convene
tion when it passed a resolution recommending that the people
take part in the eleotion cslled by the provisional governor,
R, W. Steele, to elect members of the legislature.

Idaho distriot was organiszed July 6, 1880, with
We Fo Sisty as president and Walter I. Welch as recorder.
At s meeting held November 29, 1880, Shirt Tril and Northern
districts were annexed to Idaho Springse At the same meet-
ing, upon motion of W. E. Sisty, & meeting was ocslled for
Setufday, December 8, to take measure for the location of a
courthouse on Clear Creek, An eleotion was held on Decems=
ber 11 when William Spruance was elected Cistriot Recorder
"oy a latze majority". J. 4. Batchellor, “eputy Recorder
put upon record that, "The house was thrown into confusion
of fear by e desperate looking youn; man msking his eppearw
ance in the crowd with a long knife stuck in his bootleg.
After looking savagely sround he passed out without killing
anybodys It wes whispered eround that he was the 'Blue
Robber' of the Red Mountains, but of course nobody knows."

Among the laws of Upper Union district were the
following provisions for femsle suffraze ané protection from
lawyers.

"Resolved, That all lsws or parts of laws disorime
inating or making any distriction or difference whatever in
the rights, privileges sand immunities of the two sexes are
hereby repealed and sbolished."

"No lawyer shall be permitted to practice in any
court in the distriet under penalty of not more than fifty
or less than twenty lashes, and to be forever banished from
the district."

A man convioted of stealing anything wee compelled
to regsodte it and leave the district. Failing to cdo so the
injured person was empowsred to take the thief's property,
and the guilty man wes subject to receive a certain number
of lashes, the dose to be repeated ad libitum until he left,.
If the property stolen was wvalued at more than one hundred
dollars, or if a mule or horse was stden, the thief was
hanged until he wes Head.
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Cripple Creek Region

This recion lies on the southwest slope of Pikes
Peak, twenty miles by air line from Colorado Springs and
eighty from Denver. The resion was prospected in 18859 and
1380, but bYecsuse of the soarcity of water and no great
quantities of gold, it was negleoted in favor of more pros-
perous placess

There was an sxcitement around ¥t. Pisgah in 1884
but not enou-h pay dirt was encountered to warrsnt working.
This geve the reglon another Hack eye.

¥r. Lowe, a mining engineer, made a location in
Poverty Gulch in 1881, but 't was not developeds Robert
Womaok was then given an interest in the claims He inter=-
ssted a Colorado Springs man to the extent thet the develop=
ing was financed. The discovery was meade in 1881, This
started the rush that made the region femous.

The town site was formerly a oow camp. The locaw
tion was homesteaded by Williem W. Womack, uncle of iir. Lowe,
The location was made in 1876. The ranch was sold in 1884
to the Pikes Peak Land Company. The following year the tie
tle was transferred to Bennett and Myers, a leadin: real es~-
tate firm of Denve.r, who carried on the oettle businesas
that hed been run for yesrs, Ur. Womeck, & young men, was
working for the company. He kept prospectingz but finally
the oattlemen induced the ocwners to vislt the ranch and see
the demage Womack was doing as well as the crowd of prose
pectors who were lodging and boarding at the ranche.

¥r, Womaok was instructed to fill the holes alter
he wag throuch as the owners did not have a great deal of
faith in the gold producing quality of the re ione They
did have some of the roock assayed but results did not prove
the rock unusually rich in oree

The country began to be go overrun with prospec=~
tors that Bennett and Myers made another visit to the area
and set aside eight acres of land to be sold as building
lotss A clecuse was put in each bill of sale whereby the land
was to revert back to the owners of the ranch upon abandorment
of the camps

Then ceame the big discovery of 1881 in Poverty
Guloh; from that time on the developing was very rapide The
books show that $200,000 was tsken out of the ground by the
end of '91, and that by the end of the following yser $600,000

_had been mined.
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a great deal of minersl has been taken out since then but the present
aotivity has lessened considerably.

South Park ngion

The discovery of gold was the beginning of the early settle~
nment in this region, While this country had been explored before, the
first settlement was made in 1859 in Tarryalls A group of prospectors
originally from Wisconsin and heading for Californis worked their way
over the range from Gilpin County. Some deposits of gold were found in’
Tearryall, as these men named their camp, since they were resting on their
westwsrd trip. ’

The news of this disoovery of gold soon spreads A number of
prospectors rushed to this vicinity. They found that all the desirable
elluviel ground had been tsken up by those slresdy there. These new=
oomers left with the detsrmination that they would share fairly with
other prospectors should they discover ;old elsewhere. They soon found
the object of their sesrch on the South Platte river. So in keeping
with their promises to share fairly with all comers, they named their
ocamp Falrplay.

The first mininz of any importance in South Park wes carried
on at Fairplay. The mining oléimg were limited as to size. The wicdth
of each olaim was 150 feet and extended from one bank of the river to
the other. In time many of these olairs ware grouped together and
owned by individusls, In 1878 there was 2 strike., Vages were the ocause
of this strike. 1t seems that the plaoer miners and the owners of the
claims could come to no agreement, soc the mine owners shipped in 180
Chinamens These Chinamen worked the ground on a percentage basis. They
were here about four years. A fow remained longer working claims of
their omes The methrds used at this time for collecting the gold were
rockers, sluice boxes, long toms, and bed roock flumes,.

The population of Fairplay until 1872 was ebout 280 people,
At this time eome big silver strikes were rade above Alme, The result
wes that the population increased to around 1000 for e short time.

During this time prospecting was being oarried on farther up
the South Platte river. Gold was not only found along the river but in
the gulches which feed the main stream. One of the more important of
these gulches was Buckekin Gulchs A prospe~tor by the name of Joseph
Higginbottom, who bore the name of Duokskin Joe, was the first person
to discover -o0ld in this gulche. The bed rock was found to be rioch with
golde The result of this discovery was & rush of minerse In 1861 the
town of Buckskin Joe was establisheds A postoffice was located here
under the neme of Laurette. This town was & typiocal western ocampe It
sprang up quicklye. N-arly all classes of people were represented here,
However, they all had one desire--that was to make a fortune and as soon
as possible,




Rioh deposits of ore were found in the ground adjoining the
towne This was the beginning of lode mining in South Parke This mine
wae called the Phillips. At that time it was one of the most famous
gold mines in the weets, It is reported that $300,000 worth of gold
was taken from this mine in two years. The width of this mine was suoch
that four=horse teams were driven in and turned around in the open cute
¥ost of this ore wes treated by arrastss ag werse other ores found in
that vieinity at that time, Several of these 0ld arrastas may be found
along Buckskin Gulch at the present time. The bodles of surface ore
around Buckskin Joe werse very rich, but the ore that could be handled.
profitably with the crude methods was also limiteds This town hed grown
to around a thousend pecople in e year., It was made the county seat of
Park County, which was one of the originsl nine counties in the terri-
tory of Coloracdo which were created in 186ls By 1368 the town was de=
serted, The county seat was moved to Feirplay.

Another town of considersble importance at that period was
called dontgomerye. This ceamp was cstablished in 1357 at the head of
the South Platte River. It is looated at the foot of ¥Mt. Lincoln. This
peak was named in honor of President Lincoln, whose asssasination oce
ourred at the time Yontgomery flourishede Lode mining wae the prinocipal
attraoction in thet vicinity. The town flourished until sbout 1883 when
1t was practioally deserted.

Rich placer strikes were made in the vioinity of the present
site of Alma in 1872. As & result the town of Alma ocame into existenoce
at this time.

The first discovery of silver in this viecinity was made at the
Moose nmine in 1871, This mine was located on Mt. Bross at an elevation
of 13,700 feet, The old town of Dudley was the headquarters of the locse
ocompanye. Sampling works and a small smelter were located here. Quartse
ville on 3ross wes the results of this company's operations. 3Both of
these towns are deserted nows The Yoose mine has produced 81,000,000 in
silver, Two other large producers of silver in thet viocinity were the
Tolly Varden and the Russia.

Park City was built in comnnection with the Orphan Boy mine.
Its existence was similar to that of other towns in this mining distriot.
Except for one family it is now deserted.

Sacramento Guloh had & mining boom in 1878. The Saoramento
mine was discovered at this time. It is supposed to have produced
$1,500,000 in silver. This mine employed about 100 men for three years'
times A small amelter located on Saoramento Creek operated for a short
time, but was not a sucocess.

Horseshoe was a small town bullt in 1877 when a large amount of
prospecting was done in this seotion. A small smelter was hullt here in
1879, It operated for some time, but Juring a time when there was some
labor trouble it was burned down snd was never rebuilt. A rallroad was
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built in 1890 from Fairpley through Horseshoe to a point four miles
ebove. At this point a town by the name of Leavick was built. Two
mills operated here for & times, The !iilltop and the Chance mines
wore the principal ones in this Oulche The mine operstors were the
ones who built the railroade The Colorado & Southern Railroad Company
later took this roed over,

Arrastras

When traveling alony Buockskin Creek one will notice large
saucer shaped rocks with & oone like roock center. These rocks arse
arrastras. ‘They were used by the earliest prospestors in extrscting
the gold from the rocke On top of the cone in the center of the
arrastra was attached & pole probably 20 feet longes Abcout two feet
from the end atteched to the ocone a lerge rock was tied, or at such a
length that it would drag in the ociroular basine In the basin were
smell grooves in which were placed quiok silvere

Vhen ore was to be orushed the basin was filled with amall
specimens of ore and water. Some form of power, either oxen or burros
were hitohed to the outer end of the pole. They walked in a oirole,
and in this way dragged the stone (attached to the pole) over the ore.
This orushed the ore and the quick silver in thHe groovea pioked up the
goldo )

There is no evidence that tuese people mined. It is thought
that they searched the vioinity and pioked up the rich pieces of float
and carried them to the arrastra.

These arrasiras were ussd in 1364 and even earlier than that
detes Some were cut out of bed rock slong the oreek and others out of
loose flat stones.

Salt ﬁgrka

A party of whioh Charles L. Hall was a member was traveling
through South Park in 1861. They stopped at a spring waet of the prese
ent Antero ressrvelr to cook dinner. ¥hen dinner was ready, and the
coffees wes tasted, it was found to be so salty that it wes impossible
to drink it. Fach member of the party acoused the others of putting
salt in the coffess The water in the apring was tasted and found to be
saltys

A small selt works was built at this spring by iir. Hall in
1861s This water did not contain enough salt to be profitable. A salt
spring containing more salt was found three miles south where the pres-
ent site of the old works is. A well was dug at this site, which proved
to be an ertisien well and which flows abcut four inches of wuter., The
salt works built at this site began operations in 1862, Fifty heavy cast
iron pots were freighted to the works st a cost of §1800 eechs Long nare
row sheet iron wvats were also useds At first the salt was obtained by
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svaporating the water by sun powere. Later fires were placed under these
pots sand vats.

The salt was freighted to Pueblo and other nearby towns and sold
for one dollar per pounde. The government bought selt at these works for
the Ute Indians, who came to the works at reguler intervals to receive their
supplys It was also usod in treating ores.

It is cleimed that these selt works were the first factories to
be built in the state. In 1870 when the price of salt became less than
fifty cents per pound, opsretions ceassed. The buildings still stend and
are in an excellent state of preservations

Coanl

George W. Lechner was the first person to discover coal in Park
Countye Ya opened a smell vein one=helf mile northwest of Como. This coal
was hauled to Feirplay and sold for ten dollarz per tons A short time
sfterwards, in 1879, George Boyd discovered coal in the Kingz ooal mine.
The mine wae loonted two miles eouthemet of Comos This mine was operated
steadily until 1890, At this time thers was an exrlosion in the mine and
twenty=five men were killed., The mine then ceased operation anc was never
reopened, The alr was go bad thet trouble wes experienced in retting miners,
Cninese labor wes employed part of the times This mine worked from twenty=
five to fifty men.
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ﬁar{x}Sottlementl

A perty came from Ksnsas in 1858 and cemped near
the Carden of the Gode. Later amnother party ceme and bhuilt
a log cadbin. The adventages of the plece were svident and
the alluring name of Tl Dorado. In 1888, Colorade City,
famlliarly known todey as "0ld Town" was looceted and three
hundred dwellings were ereocted the seame yser, The settle~
ment was straggling in order that ell might have acceas to
weter from the streams. Thie water was soon afterward ep~
plied to agriculture. The settlars, in order to protect
their olaims, formed en assoolstion known as the Il Paso
Claim Club, which determined and guarsnteed titles to the
land. 1t was ealaso the rude nucleus of government and exe
orcised oriminal jurlisdiction. These s ttlements were mede
with much difficulty, because the journey was longz, the only
moeng of tranaportation bheing by packs or wagons, no reile
weys having then reached the Missouri Piver, while the rie
vers themselver were not precticeble for navigetion. The
route, too, lay soross sendy plains, which were then celled
deserts, althoush a better inowledge revecled their grazing
end agricultural possibilities, Yet in spite of these dife
fioulties the warons ceme in great streams, drawn by the
magic word "gold®.

The settlemant at 0l Town suffered through the
outbreak of the Civil War, bDecsusze the route of the Arkaness
Valley was inoonveniently near the scenes of confliot and
the pioneers preferred the more northern course of the Platte.

Yhen the territory was orgenized in 1861 the acts
of the Fl Paso Claim Club were given judloial recognition.
Commissioners were appointed to organize the county for the
region about Pikes Peak and it received the neme T] Pasoe~=
that is, "The Pass" so named mfter Ute Pass.

Coloredo was so faraway from the seat of war that
it was but little affected by the conflict, yet some recruite
ing was done in El Paso County, almost entirely for the Union
sides The grasshoppers c¢id more damage than the Confederstos
however,

The first reanches were teken up and irrigsted in

the South Park region in the eerly sixtiess From this begine
ning many thousands of eores in thet locality have been develw
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oped for the growing of hay in connectlion with the livestoock
industry. Agrioultural settlements and irrigation began in
the vicinity of Denver sbout the sane time or possibly & lit-
tle earlier., The first lumbering wes probably iz connection
with the mining development in Clesr Creek and Gilpin Coune
tiese. Altosether the verious industriea have been in opera-
tion for approximately Ffifty years.

The country early became unusuanlly aocessible, both
from the standpoint of railroads and wagon a&nd automobile
roadss This was true even before most of it was rescrvoed as
& National Forest. The development from all stendpoints is,
therefore, rore advanced then is common in a& rough mounteine
ous countrye

Agrioulture, especially, has sbout reached the limit
of prectical developmente The intensity of derand for agrie-
oultural lend under the Forest Homestead fct of June 11, 1908,
has resulted in the segrezation of practically everything that
can be successfully developeds The majority of settlers on the
tracts restored to entry under the Forest Jomestead Act Liave
not wade & suocess of siricultures. 1n & few cases this is due
to a lack of intelligent effort, but in many ceses the poscibile
ity of suocess does not exist in the land. This feot incioates
that a very liberal policy of classification has been followeds

The presence of unusuelly good transportetion feelle
ities, together with the proximlity to mining centers, such as
the Cripple Creek, Clear Creek and Gilpin distrlcts, and the
more recent development of the tungsten mines in doulcder Coun=-
ty, have been responeible for a very keen demand for all ace
cessible timer. Probadly seventy=five per ocent of the tim-
bared lands has been cut over some a seoond and third time.

The fir:%t settlements elong the South Platte river
were probebly mads in the early sixties immedletely after the
founding of Denvere. These settlers were stoc:r raisers whe
selected the best hay lands along the South Platte river in
South Park and used the oleszsified aresa for summer grazing.

The northern part of the Lake George ares was withe
drawn December B8, 1892, when the South Plette Fcrest Reserva-
tion was craateds The present boundary of the Pike Nationel
Forest was established August 10, 1910 The townships included
in the region were surveoyed between the years 1374 and 1880.
The land was then subject to entry under the verious land laws
and approximetely 9,303.,04 acres have been patentad,
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During the seventies and eighties when the mining
excitements were many and short lived, men would settle here
aweiting news of the next strike, when they would move on to
the more alluring scenes of mining ectivities,

During the Clripple Cresk exocitement in the early
nineties the lake George reglon was subjeoted to a most
thorouzh but unsystematio surfece prospectinge The location
of these old workings indicetes that the prospectors of +his
region, in their haste to bs made wealthy, worked under the
theory that "gold is where you finc it"s No procucing mines
were found and very few mineral patents were ever asked for.
Jefore the railroad resched Cripple Creci, & jood market
could be found there for produce, and during this period
many of the agricultursl tracts of this region were settled
upone. Some farming was done but the ceming of the railrosds
gZave acoess to more fertile lands with which this sres oould
not compete, and the temporary eagricultural use passed with
the crange in economic oconditionse. The Colorado Midland
reilroad was constructed in 1885«8 along the line of the
stage route running from Colorado Springs througa South Park
to Leadville. Tnis opened the oountry so that the trading
covered a larger area. :

The first settlement on what is nor the Pikes Peak
(8) distriot ocourred in about 1879-80.

Ure ile Go Smith, known sas Dootor Sxith, made zet-
tlement at Seven lLakes, and entered 160 aores of lend ine
cluding the Lekess He constructed & resort at the north end
of lske 6. Lre Smith later resided in Coloredo Spriungs and
died about 1810.

Dr. Smith, who was & noted character and & friend of
Horace GOreeley, built a two story hotel at Seven lakes.
later Mr. R. W. Bradshaw acded another story to the buillding,
The touriata were routed via the old stage roed to Duffield,
sround St. Peters dome eand to Seven lakes., There wes no
gettlement at Rosemont at that times. A burro treil was
meintained to the top of the pesk from the hotels. The hotel
was torn down during the Cripple Creek boom.

In 1888, Tousalin, John Kerr and Dr. Adams built
& cottage st the site of the present Star ranch.

At about this time John Love settled on Middle
3eaver Creek near where Clyde is located, and Cuharley lLove
settled on west Beaver Creek nesar where Locve on the old
Short Line Reilway is loocated. They each mede entry of
180 acres of lande Cherley Love now resides st Rifle, Colo~
rado, where he is heavily interested in lands and cettle.
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Mr. Frark Yeymen, retired business man of Colorado
Springs, says he and his father ocorstructed a oabin on Fast
Beaver Treek in the vicinity of where Rosmont is looated,
in 1882. They shandonad it a year later and built on Nock
rreek just over Teymen fMill. They held cettle in that viein-
ity a short time and then abandoned it. The hill is still
known ss Haymen Hille

Joel M. Wade, grandfather of Frad Barr, builder of
tte Barr trall to Tikes Pesk, sattled on the south brench of
Seuth Choyerne Cresek, Secs. 10, T, 15 S., R. 67 ¥., in adout
1888, Tade's plece was cuite a noted stopping place cduring
the emrly days of Cripple Creek. The buildings hnve since
burned and have bsen torn down. The looation on some waps
is marked Wade City.

He C. Rathks sattlsd on Fast Beaver Cresk in sbout
1888 and enterel 180 mores of land in Sections 23 and 24,
7. 15 S., Re 88 W. s s0ld his land to Cherley Hencook tnd
moved down the creek ahout four miles where he rede I, C.
Pancock conatruct a roed house on land purchased from Rathke
whioh was known es Falfway Fousea between Colorado Springs
and Cripple Creek from about 1882 to 1900,

Pikes Pesk

Few plaoe names in Ameriose~in the world--are better . '
known then Pikes Peak. Tn the first plece the name it bears ]
belonzs to a men who not only believed it incapeble of asoent ' "
but who died ignmorent of the fect thet this monument of the
cortinent was to herald his neme to all eges forevar, FVor

< twenty=rive yemrs it even bore the name of James, the rirs® man .
C to reach its summite . ' =

History of Pixes “aak Rignal ftation

The history of the old Signal Station was published
in Herper's Weekly of Notober 1878, and is quoted in part.

Sewe=The nited States signel service station on
the summit of Pikes Peak was formally dedicated on the eleventh
of October last., It is a sudbstential one story building with
walls two feat thick end wes erected at a cost of 32500, The
struoture faces thLe east. The ceremonies o the occasion
consisted of brief and arpropriate addresces, one of which
wes mede by 'Graos Greenwood', and the presentation of 2 large
flag by & young lady of Cclorade Springs. ¥re. Soehmer, the
observer of the station, responded. When the Stars and Stripes
were flung to the breegze from the hirhest sicnal station in
the world, three rousing onheers were given. A large number
of ladies and gentlemen were present and the party remained
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tourist carried {lowers to the summit and places them on
Baby O'Keefe's gravee. :

"Some years later in 1881 Sergeant Dye took charge
at the sumit. ile went up the Bear Creeck trail in compeny
with Fee Jones axnd & pscker nemed Smith. Smith wes left et
& halfway point with the camp and two mules. A severe mnow
storm oocurred in the absence of Dye and Jones and it was &
weok before they could return to camps Smith had no hay or
grain but later rendered an itemised bill to the government
for what the mules ate, as followss OCne wagon box §3.00,
one seddle $25.00, two saddle blankets $8.,00, a portion of
the stable $5.00, total £38,00, At lest accounts the bill
etill remained unpaide.

"During Dye's inoumbency & new house was commenced
and partly built where the summlt house now stends.

"Serzesant Dye left in 1882 and Sergeent Hell was
sssigned tc the position. The bullling commenced by Dye was
conpleted by Hall snd consisted of stone, thirty feet by fif-
ty feet. A stone wall was built from the new to the old
building and iron rods pleced to gulde persons passing from
one building to the other during a storme. The new building
cost the government about $5,000.00. Hall remained until
about 1885 or 1886, At one time the rovernment property was
stored in a part of the new bullding and the rsme nier
%0 o PARLAGS s :

"The Cog road was completed to the surmit in 1890.

Tho_Cpg road snd signal service both used the by ldinrs un
e WUE YORT BNU 31IEIML BRrTITE SUTH USBA The tulldings up

to 1892, when the government property was removed to Colorado
Springse The house built in 1871 was taken down snd the stone '
used to bulld the addition built by Hieatec on the Cogz roed."

The romd ies still a marvel in the minds of all who
visit the summit over 1ts route. The company records show
receipts from more then & million visitors.

Railroads

General Palmer first came to the Colorade Springs
region in July 1888. Ile was then engaged in the building of
the Eenses Pacific reilwey which ren to Denver, and concelived
the idea of & reilway from Denver skirting the esstern base
of the Cordillersse In the winter of 18698-70 he received a
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letter from Captain Colton, sugzesting the location of a
prinoipal reilwey point at the mouth of Ute Pass and the
confluence of thes Fountein and Monument,.

A colony was estehlished and the first condition

for the successful plenting of the colony was, of course,

the buildiny of a railway. The Kensas Pacific reacned Dene
ver in 1870. In the sutumn of the same year the [enver and
Rio Grande railway ocompany was orgenised and decided to build
at once as far as Colorado Springse. The construction of the
railroad, the C. & R. G., was begun on July 27, 1871; it
reached Colorado Springs on Jotober 21 of the same year.

Colorado and Southern to Central Lity end 3lackhawi

The reailroads were not long in remching the mining
distriects of Central City and Idaho Springse 1n 1870 the Colo-
rado Central Railroad built seventeen miles of line from Denver
to Golden. This was across ocomparstively easy ocountry, but
the remainder of *he route, f rom Golden to Blackhawk, ocerried
the line throu;h the Cluar Creek zorges with a rise of two
thousand feet in twenty-one miles, and presented some extreme-
ly diffiocult engineering problems. This latter part
of the line was completed in 1873, but it was not until 1878
thet the first trein was run to Centrsal City. In order to
reach this town from 3Blackhawk, which is only one mile dis-
tent, it was necessary to oconstruct a series of switchbacks
four miles lonz pasaing over two hogs~backs to overcome &
difference in elevation of five hundred feet,

The Proposed Pikes Peak Narrow Gauge Reilway

This survey was made in 1883 by Engineer Y. 1. Reed,
now loceted in the Garetts Building. A charter wes seoured
end an agt of the grant was published in the Use Book issued
by the INterior Department to Officers of the then, Forest
Reservess

It started at Yeritou, destinetion Pikes Peak, via
Crystal Park, thence around north and west side of Cemeron's
Cone on to the east side of Lake Mdorain, to Seven Lakes, thenoce
to summit of Plkes Peake. 1t was expected at that time that
Seven Lakes would be made into & resort. The length of the
proposed road, 8o ¥r. Reed states, was between twenty end
twenty«~two miles, maximum grade 8%.
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The funds to construct this road were subscribed
by Philadelphia parties and placed withthe Grant~Werd Bank.
The rosd was greded es far as Crystel Park in 1884 when the
Grentefard Berk feiled, in which the funds to construct the
roac were ceposited, Construction then stopped.

1t has been stated that General Grant was interested
in the oconstruction of this road, but from eall informstion ob=
teinatle it now secms that Le was interested only in the (rante
Ward 3ank of Boston, which was attempting to Iinence the deal.

Colorado Yidland Reilway

The building of the Colorado Midland Reilway through
Ute Pass in 18868 revived the prosperity of Colorade Springs and
Manitou and slso opened up & large region to the west that had
been more or less isclated until this time,

The reilroad into South Park was built in 1878. It
was ccmpleted as far a«e Jsro that year., Two years later it
arrived in Fairplay. The following year, 1882, it was duilt to
Alma Junoction. The London Company later built & spur from Alma.
Junction to its mill. This spur was ebandoned in a fow years.
The Coloredo and Southearm oompany pushed their road from Garo
to Buena Vista in 1886. Yrom this point it was completed to
Pitkine. Operation of this road south was discontinued eftsr
1890, The Colorade Midland rallrosd was built through the
southern end of the park in 1388, This road wes abandoned in
1918,

Roads

Berthoud Pass

The Denver, Golden City and Salt Lake Road and Tela-
graph Conpany cbteined in the winter of 1853-8C a charter from
the Legislature of Xanses esuthorizing them to locate and estabe
1ish roads and steage routes throughout the Territory of Kensas.
Under the provisions of this charter the company instituted «
search and survey for a pass across the mountains from Lenver
to Salt Leke in May 1861, which resulted in the discovery of
Berthoud Pass, and on the first of July, 1861, the company
fitted cut & seocond expedition and surveyed a roed f{rom Denver
over the pass at an expenditures of $§,000. The same oompany
applied to the first Colorado Legislature in November 1881 for
& charter,

Berthoud Pass was nemed efter Captain Berthoud, for
whom the town of Berthoud, Colorado, was also named, He sure
veyed the first trail over the pass in 1861, At that time
there was & mining excitement over Gold Run in Middle Park, end

this new trail was to be a shorter and quicker route into the
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new pleocers. Intrance tc the Park was then, and previously, by
Breckenridge ancd down the Blue river to the Grand, then up the
Grend, a long end roundabout treil, especlally from Denver, or
over the Indian trsils, of courses. The [irst wheeled venicle
in the Park was a two-wheseled cart drawn by an ox, that came
over the Breckenridge route about 1860. The cart wasz later
sbendoned up Ute Creek near Elk “ountsin, and years after Frank
S. Byers had the yoke and parts of the ocart at liot Sulphur
Springss V¥hat finelly became of it 18 not ¥nowne The first
wagons into the Park ceme from Selt lake in a government train
of twenty-two wegons, esach drawn by six mules, and escorted by a
ecmpany of Us. S, Cavalry. They traveled from Fort Louglas, neer
Salt Leke, to lenver, end it ie thought they went on tc Fort Lea~
ven worth, but this is not oertains This treain cut the first
wagon road over the Renge from the Perk, via what was then
Boulder Pess, now Rollins Pass, whers the l{offat Road orosses
today, in the Fell of 1864« It was over this road-eRollins
Pess~-that ¥r. Byers first enterred Middle Park, with his
father, Williem N, Byers, in 1864, Iie filed on the 160 acres
enclosing the Springs in 1864, and later completed his title
with Sioux Soript, bought from an Indimn named Toshmen. Hut
Boshmen had lots of relatives, snd later it cost him about
$65,000 to quiet all these claims. Thet made the Springs a
losing deal four them for all time to comee The next year the
olaim was jumped by & man named Ed fistes, who held it sgainst
them with two sixshooters, until e big negro who worked om
the News grebbed him from behind, and he had to drop his guuse
Then W, 4. Byers explained about his previous filin:s and the
Indian Soript, and Sistee promptly gave up all olsim to the
Srrings. That was in 18658, At that time locetions could rnot
be definitely outlined as the only survey wes & brso line

that ren about eix miles south of the Springse.

The first cabin at the Springs was built in 1861
by Gus Rsader. It wes looated on the town-side of the river,
nesar the cold sulphur spring, end venished long sgoe Billy
Couzens loceted on his rench, about two miles sbove Fraser,
et the foot of the Pess, in 1873, and brought in his family
in 1874, and they still live theree. For years this wes the
eating plsoe and helf-way stop uetween Empire and Hot Sulphur.
Judge Weatcott was the first settler at Grand lake, in 18€6.

The road over Berthoud was vullt piecemeal, so to
speak. 4 man nemed Fussell bszer it at Empire in 18¢2 or
1863, and built it about half way up, to the Blg Bend, as it
was later oalled. He quit in 1884, ané, from the Biy Bend, John
8. Jonss constructed s roed on up the Creek over Jones Pass,
and down ¥illiame Fork to the Urandes He took over only one
trein of wagons, and after that the roed was practically
«bandoned over Jones Pess. He looated s ranoh on the Grend,
tut that winter cleaned him out, as it was unusually severe
and &ll his stoock died. Fxocept possibly a stray cemper no




and then, looking for troubles, these were the only wegons
¥r. Byers knows of to oross Jones Passe The trail from the
end of the wagon road at Biz Bend was used more and more
over Berthoud, until 1374 William Cushmen, & Georgetown
banker, built the road from the Big Bend, where Russell quit
ten years bsfcre, on over the pass to Couzenss It was come
pleted Ootober 1, 1375 to Couzens, ancd the first stege over
Berthoud Pess waas criven by the famous stage driver, Bill
Updykes, It was a Conocord coach, and the trip was made from
Georgetown to Cousens and back on the same day. He drove
the mail over Berthoud for about two yearse

Berthoud Pass wes not used by the Indlans. They
travaled Hollins Pass end also had a trail around Jemes Pezk
down into Bleckhewk and Centrale It ia fair to say that the
road over Berthoud was begun by Captain Berthoud in 188%Z,
built helf way up the Atlantio side by Russell in 1864, and
completed by Cushman on October 1, 1875. The road romained
practioally unchenzed until the sutomobile road was built
seveoral yenrs agzo, with subsequent changes of coursse Omly

stags road on the Atlantic side, but the auto rosd follows é
more or less clossly the old road down to nsar High Eridge 1
on the Pecific side. The old stege High Bridge 1s not the ' |

pressent location of the auto bridge. The present suto road
is four miles longer on the Atlantic slope and three miles
longer on the Pecific slope than the original wagon road,
with much lower gredes. Fven in the old days, the BSerthcoud
roed was a much better one in every way than the Rollins
Pass route into the Park.

Cushman went broke and left the country and the
Bsrthoud Pass road-~both 1t and Rollins were toll roads, by
the way-=wes sold to W. A. Hammond for about §7,000, at
sheriff's gale. It proved a small zold mine to Hemmond,
who s0ld it to the state about 1898 or 1897 for $25,000,
when it became a free state road. °“r. Byers used to pay
Bammond from six to seven dollars 2 day in rosd ¢ells when
he was running & stege line from Georgetown to the Springse.
And others psid likewise, The 1ittle Blue Hill wes the
hardest, steepest pull over the FPass, lccated far down en
the Atlentic sides

Joan Quinoy Adsms Rolline, to give his full namse,
had the first mei) contract over Berthoud, & summer route
only, once a week, in 1875. The first all ye-r mail conirect
was by Seymour % Campbell, of Oeorgetown, trie-weekly, and bee
gen July 1, 1878, Then C. H. Hook took the contract in 1877,
Byers put on an opposition stege line over Berthoud in 1877,
and later had the mall contrect. Xe ocarried it deily, al- .
though the contract wee still tri-weekly, most of the time; the i
official deily all year round meil over Berthoud wes in 1288, :
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The first winter contract mail over Berthoud was
packed on his back eand carried on snowshoes by Bill Kimball
in 1878 and for the next winter also. Kimball was a wonder,
the best snowshoe man ever known in ¥iddle Parke His pack
was never less than seventy pounds of mail end it is known
that he ocarried ons hundred five pounds at timese [ia often
packed straight through from Empire tc Hot Sulphur, going
night and day, with no sleep, stopping only for meels. He
never wore gloves, and only one pair of wool socks, with or=
dinery oityman's rubbers over them. lie was rearly blind,

e tall, rewboned man from Meine., He lived iong, end finally
died on his ranch in the Park, later called the Peter Ingel
ranche

One morning he overtook ¥r. Byers' cousin, Glemn
Sheriff, and i{r. Byers at Spruce lod ;e on the Purk side of
the Pass, and they went on to the Springs togetiher, Glenn
Sheriff and ¥r, Byers had slept all night in Kimball's oabin
and had no packs, but the; were worn out when they got to the
Springs, but Kimball, with his heavy mail eack on his back,
was far less tired and he had come all the way from Empire
and over the Pass without stopplng, except tov eatese Thet wes
¥ay 8, 1878, Kimball also paoked the meil on snowshoes over
Rerthoud in 1877 and 1878, Glenn and ¥re. Byers found a men
froten to death that trip just ebove High Bridgee. He was
sented on & stump sticking out of the srow, desd. They left
him as they fcund hims In swmer thet stump was & dead pine
twolve to fifteen feet highe. That showed how deep the snow
is up there. The femous "Snow Story" by ir. 3yers' cousin,
Cneuncey Thomes, rlves & perfect account of whet such a irip
means when the weether is bad on Tops He, too, learned it
by personel experience crossing 3erthoud February 14, 1094,
on snowshoes, end agein in April of the sams yeer, when it
was melting.

fleorgetown Road

In the spring of 1360 the Griffiths bulls a roed
from the head o Tureka Guloh %o Georgetown, & distance of
twenty miles at a cost of about 21500.00. In the fall they
hrought in a stemp mill and had it in opers:ion in April 1881,
Cyrus Hillibiddle improved the road during the surmer of '80
and drove the first wagon into Georgetown in Auguste

Loveland Pass Road

This roed was constructed in the spring of 1899 and
during the boom days of Leadville. At that time it wes claimed
that this route was seventy miles shorter than any other then
existing romud between Denver and Leadville.
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This road was promoted and built by the Baksrville
and Leadville Toll Road Company. Some eighty men were eme
nloysd who started work on M¥arch 8 in the vicinity of Grey-
mont, the promoters cleiming that they would bs operating
their stage line within thirty days. By April 3 the cemp
had been moved to timber line. At that time there wero only
fifty or sixty of the original orew working, some twenty or
thirty men having quit on ancount of the severe weathor,

The capital stock of the Bakerville end Loacdville
Toll Road Company wes $30,000 and it was ertimated that the
vost of sonstruction at the time of year it was huilt would
be sbout three times the ocost under more fevorable wer ther
gonditions.

I After completion a stage line owned b, Silas W,
Xnott was opereted delly (both summer and winter) hetween
Goorgetown and XKokomo, & distance of forty-four miles for
two or three years, for it seems the traffio hecame lesas and
loss after the completion of the reilromd into Leasville
until it was finally abendoned.

This route wes originally known as the High line.
The present name of Loveland was given in honor of W, A, H,
loveland, who in 1330 gurveyed and sterted 2 tunnel through
the renge at this point for the Union Pecific Fallroad Come

pany.

History of the Denver & leadville Road

S During the summer of 1088 a amell pearty of nen ree

N turning from the cold rush to felifornie in '49 discovered

EAEE £01d near where Leadville now atendse Considerabio exoltee
' mant resulted.

The place was named Californie Gulech efter the men
from "aliforniae Proapectors from all over the country hew
gan to gather here and dlz for r~olde In a short time a good
slzed cemp was established end of ocourse needed supplias to
the extent that neoking by a jeck treain was out of the ques=
tions A direot route to Tenver over which » wagon read oould
be built was searched for and with the aid of the Ute Indiane,
who were friendly to the white men at this tine, a loocation
for their road wa: decided upon. This was the trail used by
the tes from South Park to the nlains neer Nenver and the
Indians assured them that this was the most direot route
they know of end which afterwards proved to be a fact and ale
20 the mogt pronticeble route for the road,




John Melntyre, Major Bradford and Judge Stecke
undertook the building of this road and secured s charter
for twenty-five years from the Legislative Department of
the territory to construct and maintsin a toll road from
Denver to California Gulche These men soon built or rather
blased a trail over the route in a short tirne, hiring as
much labor as possible and contributing sotusl lebor theme
selves, In a surprisingly short time a groat many travelers
snd freighters were following this road into Californis Guloch,.

The roed left Denver and took nearly the exsot routse
a3 the present roed does until within about five nmiles of ‘ore
rison. It then turned to the elft and began to climh the
mountains two and one~half miles south of the mouth of Turkey
Creek. This hill was the herdest olimb of the entire routeg
it was approximately four miles long and very steep. The road
went over the top of this mountain and came back onto Turkey
Creek about seven and one-half miles above the mouth of the
oreeke This hill was known as Bradford hill and creaded by
all teamaters who had to cross ite The intersection of this
road with Turkey Creek was at the George Hutchinson Rench,
later Hutchinson Poat Office and still later Bradford Junoe
tion. The place is cwrned by & nephew of J. Ki Hullen at pre=
sent. The road continued on up Turkey Creek and over the
same route as the present rosd to the heead of Pine Grove
Gulehj from here 1t turned up the rid-e and ocut in adbove
Rolling Gulch and ceme out on Deer Creek st the Henry Wonder
ranch, then over the divide and down 8laughter House 5ulch,
turning west about half way down and then across the low
ridres to Smith Creek then down to the Platte ai the Hepburn
Ranch. The road then followed up the Platte and over Kenosha
Pass into South Park in very nearly the exeot locetion as the
present road is today. After orossing the Park the road ran
to Fairplay and then up over Hosquito Pass and then on into
C:1lifornia Gulch. This Pass was used only during the summer
as the snow prevented them orossing during the winter, Therew
fore, snother route from Fairpley was traveled which went
sacross to where Buena Vista 1s& now anc then on over to Cale
ifornie Gulohe

A toll gate was placed on Xenoshe Pass and another
one at Bradford Junotion. Toll was ooliected from all whe
used this roedes A charge was made of two dollers and a half
for a four horse team and two dollars for a szin;le team; sade
dle horses were allowed to pasz for fifty cents sach. The
gate collecting the toll issued a ticket which sllowed the
team to pass on through the sscond gate without further oherge.
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While it seema to be a rather smell fee to pay for
this long trip, the amount of travel over this roead made it

a very good paying proposition. Later on end before the cher-

ter expired so much travel was ione on this road between iene
osha Pass and the Bredford Junotion that it was neceszary to
establish several other toll gates. The first gate was kept

by GGeorge Harriman on Kenosha Pass, the next by William Slaghts

near Shawnee, John Parmallee at Deer Creek kept the next one,
then Silas Flliott and the Omaha House between Shaffers Crosw
sing and Conifer, then Bradford Junotione. Another gete was
kept for a short time at the Bell Ranch about one mile wast
of Elk Creek.

During the spring of 1361 a ¥r. Spotswood and Wile
liam ¥oClellend began operating a steze line vetween Denver

and California Gulohe The stage comnany's squipment conaisted

of a nunber of large Coneord coaohes and nearly one hundred
head of horses. Arrsngements were made with local ranchmen
and settlei:s to take cere of their stock along the roed and

where negessary & station was bullt. The cost of there comches

was five hunired dollars each snd one hundred fifty dollers
for a four horse set of Concord harness. The stege compeny
paic¢ the Toll Roed Company yeer long retes for the uee of
this romd.

The stege made the trip from Denver to felifornia
Gulch in twenty-four hours, whioh is remsrkeble time conald-
ering the sondition of the road ancd also when it requires
nearly eight hours to mske the same trip now in & motor cer
on rood roadss The coach left Denver at 8¢00 A.M. and
changed horses every ten or twelve miles. The drivers
ohanged every twelve hourss Four to s&ix head of horses wore
used in a team and they were driven on a full run except upe
hill and then often times the passengers were forced to walk
for & short distence. The oosch carried nine pessengers end
each passenger was allowed twenty pounds baggages. The fare
from Denver to California Gulch wes $14.00 and §10.00 per
one hundred pounds was charged for express shipments. The
coach also ocarried the maile Mre. S. Elliott bid §9,000.00
for this contract in 1868 but was slightly under hid by
Spotswood and iicClellend.

A coach left Denver every morning and one arrived
every morninze The passengers were not “orced to ride clear
through i they did not oare to as ecoommodations were pro=

vided for them at a stege station half way and they could atop

over and continue the balance of the trip the next might,
Acoidents were quite frequent but in only one instance was
there s passonger killed. A ocoach driven by Tom Cooper wes
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wrecked on the pass above Fairpley in which a minister was
killed,

Leter on and about 1884 the road was chasged from
Pine Grove Gulch and was built across Rolling Gulch and Deer
Cresic and oame on to the Platte at a noint where Bailey now
stands, then up the river to the Hepburn ranch again. This
chanze was made to overcome some of the stesp grades snd a
Tew settlers had moved in along the Platte whioch could bs
servad by the stage line. Another change way made in 1868
when John ¥olntyre sold his intersest in the toll road to
Jin MoNasser who induced the octher members of the company
to aliminate Bradford iiills A contract was let to John
Parmallee who bullt seven and one-half miles of road domn
Turkey Creek Canon whioh oonneoted Bradford Junction with
Morrison. This route now is practiocally the same as it wag
then only, of course, grades and sharp curves heve bssn elinme
inated.

The atage line cperstad from l'envsr up until 1877
when the Colorado and Southern railroed reechsd Pine Grove.
The stsge line then ran from here up Pine UGrove and then on
to California Gulohe The railroad reached Belley &n 1879
end the stege terminated here for a short time, then at
Slaghts Ranch near Shawnee and then at Webster at the oot
of Kenosha Pass. From here the stege met the railroad as it
came on until it reached Leadville in 1831, Celifornia Gulch
wes now Leacdville as the hig strike was made in 1877 and the
next year the town was named leadville., The town boomed in
1879,

A few of the nloneers who kept stege stations end
toll gates on this roed ere George Hutchinson, who ownec the
ranch which later hecame Sradford Junotion on Turkey Cresekg
(tvorge Fllas, who kept the Cmaha House between Shaffers Crose
aing end Conifar; !r. S. Flliott later kept thls atetion;
Juhn Permallee at the Deer Creek rarnchg ¥W. L. Ssiley end iHrse
E., L. ntriken at Baileys; William Rleghts at Chawnee; Charlie
Hepburn now Jecct Ranch and Cuorge Harrimsn on Kenosha Passe

A few of the well known stege drivers were Ed Pike,
Fay Gorwean, Bill Rowland, ¥. R. Head, Abe ¥Williemson, Jorn
Trull, Charlie Winkley, Tom Coopsr and Pearly Wasson, Henry
Wonder, & pioneer of Paurk County, was the blacksmith for the
company and also drove stage.

lost Park Rosd and ¥ill

in 1882, Ceorge Lews, W. H. Fooper and « man by the
neme of Rodgers, started construction work on & road into Lost
Perk. This vwas completed in 1887 and a mill set on the ridge
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between Craig Meadows end the North Fork of Lost Parke The road cost
$1700,00 in oash and labor contributed by all of the operators. This
was sn extremely difficult undertaking as there were places & Quarter
of a mile at & stretch that had tec be corduroyed and bullt up of logs.

The timber was cut from eighty acras of pstented land on the
ridge and then the mill wes moved over into Lost Farke It had just been
set up and all necessary buildings completed whea the government was
notified that a trespass was being committeds Agenta were sent out from
the Department of the Igterior and stopped all cubtiag.

About all that the oparators realiged out o tie ocutfit wes
their horsess the mill, wagona and slcds wero left there and later hauled
aeway by renchers and other mill ownerss Consequently this was not a very
profitable adventures

There were tvo main stege routes opesrated through South Park,
one from Denver to Feirplay and the other from Colorado Clty through the
Park, over Weston Pass and into Loadville. The roal over Teston Pass wes
& %01l roade A charge of $1.80 per team and wagon was oharged for the
uae of this roads This road wes used sxtsnsively beloras the reilread
reached Leacdville, This roed wes built in 1361 and later rebuilt in 1878,
All treaffio betwesn Leadville and eastern points vas carried on over this
road. Stage coaches of the Concord type were usel for paisengerse. Ore
aad bullion were freizhted east while most of the suppliss came from Coloe
rado City. Some osme from Dunver.

A toll road was built over ifosquito Maes in 1879 end 1880. The
grades were steep. Only light freight and express were haulsd over the
road. It was called the fagt freight routee. DPrssengers ware hsuled over .
1a summer, The fare from Fairplay to Leadvills waa six dollaras. This '
was used only about two years befores “he reilroad reachod Lacdville. All
regular traffic ceased after that tlae. Another staze road was bullt up
the Tarryall and over Boreas Pacs into Jreckenridse. A town named Hamlle
ton was built at the mouth of Tarryall ocanon about #hree miles from the
present site of Comoe. With the bullding of the railroad in 1879 as far as
Garo, Hamiltor was abendoned and Como was located on ths railroad. ‘

Suide posis were aset about fifty yards apart alon; all roads in
the open parke This would ziva the impreasion that the winters were muoch
mara severe in the nast than they sre at praesent.

In about 1882 & toll road was construoted up Hear Creek by He I,
Reed, who is still a resident of Colorado Springs, Frank W. Howbert, at that
time oclerk and recorder of ¥l Pase County, now Internal Revenue Colleotor
residing in Denver, znd Je Ce Plumb, later mayor of Colorado Snringe, now
deceased. The objest of the road wes Seven Lakes, which was expected would
become¢ quite popular as a resort, and the sumait of Pil:es Peaks The road was
only completed to Seven lakes and later sold to General Palmer, s portion of
whioh !s now tue Tizh Drive and belongs “o the City of Colorsdo Springse
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From & point where the High Drive leaves BDear Creek to Seven Lakes the
road is sbandoned. At about the time these parties were constructing
the Dear Creek roed, object Pikes Peek, John Hualey sad assoolates of
the Antler's livery built the carriege road from lasoade to the summit
of Plkes Peake It was considered & race ms to which would ret a road
to Pikes Peak firsts. This was prior to *he Coy rsilroad, whioch was com=
pletad in 1890.

Colorado Springs - Cripple Cresk Road

Mre M. A, Foster, who resided in Cheyenne Cenon since *he early
ssventies, stetes that the first sttempt to build e road up Cheyenne Moun-
tain was in about 1880 by Black Iavis and ii. J. “aird, who ren ocettle east
of where 3reocdmoor is loocateds The objeot of the road was to get cettle
up on Cheyenne Creek &nd get out logs end woode Other sottlers did some
work on the road to improve it so they oould haul out woode
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Mr. John Himebaugh, a retired hotel man, came to Colorado
Springs in 1878. He stetes thet in 1879 or 1880 he walked
up South Cheyenne over Seven Falls. At that time there was
no trail to Seven Falls. He went on up to where Ioctor
Smith had @ small sewmill snd when he returned he followed

& diu roed or waron tracks thet brought him over about the
route of the pressnt lower end of the new Colorscde Srpingse
Cripple Creek roade The Dr. Smith, Mr. Himebeugh refers to,
1s the seme Smith that made entry of the Seven lakes. ir,
Swmith exterded the rond up pact the foot of Si. Peters Dome
and where Rosemont is now looated and to Seven Lakes. He
also built the Seven steps road between Rosemont and Seven
Lakess This roed remained in sbout the seme ocondition, open
to the public, enc used some by Wemther Bursau men on Piles
Pouks Because of tis location on the south side of the Peak
it remeined open longer in the 7all and opened eerlier in the
Spring thean the Bear Creek and Freemont Trails.

In 1880~1891 gold was disoovered in Cripple Creek
end & stempede to get to the new liiscovery followed. irs
Dixon owned the lanc at the point where this road entered
the mountains, now Broadmoore. He¢ placed & ;ate at tie en~
trence and chergsd all goers and comers & toll to et through
the gates In sbout 1892-1893, Fl1 Paso County mede some ar-
rangements with Dixon, made a survey changing the route via
Haymer Hill inetesd of vie foct of St. Peters Dome. !r. Tom
Ord ccnatrusted the road and he tells me the cost of the
road from Broadmoor to Cripple Creck wus five thousand dol-
larse After this road was completed it was the mmin roed to
Cripple Creek. Stages end freight were moving 4n both éireo=~
tions over the road. Road houses wers all filled to capeoity
every night, and at ncon the stopping places were Wedes, Half-
way House, Saderlind (Rosemont), Clyde and love.® Travel aone
tinued about the seme until the Short Line Rallway was built,.
8ince that time i1t is used very little and has not Leen kept
in repair. Thls roac is known now as the old Cripple Creek
Stege roads Up until 1399 Cripple Cresk was in El1 Page ‘oune
tys Teller County was organized in April 1339,

Plltes Psak Auto Highway

The Pilkes Pesk Aubto Highway Association was formed in
1914« It secured & permit from the Forest Service to construot
& road from the Pllkes Feak Ocean to Ocesn Highway at Casowuds to
the top of the Peaks The work was started in 1914 and wes complete
ed in 1918, It is eighteen miles long with an averapgs grade of
seven per cent, the maximum being 10.3%,
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Four=iile Hill Toll Roed

Thic road was built in 1892 end purchased, or taken over, by
The County about two years later. Although §1.00 per person toll was
charged, the roed was not & finanoiel success. The toll gate was
loceled on the west side of the stream about 100 yards above the present
041 Creek Crossinge The venture felled after the railroad was extended
from Yidlend to Gillette.

014 Pikee Pesk (Stege Toll Road)

This road wes built in 1889 or 1890 and followed approximately
the loomtion of the present suto highway. The company ren their owm
stages and charged §1.00 tolls The steges left lascade sbout 8130 aeme
and returned adbout ¢ p.m. the same day. Four liorses were used to Helf

A Vay House and four mules for the last snd hardest part of the climbe.
The toll ;ate hcuse was satout two miles al:ove Csascade on the left side
end e short dlstance bYelow Cesscacde Creeok summitse This road was preo=
tically ebendoned with the completion of the Cog Rokde

The present Plkes Peak Autc Highway, another toll roed built in
1918-18, follows the suvne gerersl route to the summit of Plkes Peake
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TIMBER

Lumbering in some form began in the various sections of
what is now the Plke Forest with the earliest settlements,
the earliest bsing about 1860, These early operations were
on a snall scale and wers suffioclent only to supply the mines
and the few ranchers and stockmen who first settled the coun-
try. Outside the ocountry in Clear Creek and Gilpin Counties,
where the first discovery of gold was made in 1858, and that
portion of the forest which lies nearest Denver, no lumbering
on extensive socale was carriec on prior to 1332, The lumber
was mostly delivered with ox teams to the mines, charocosl
kilns and to the town of Denver. The mills used were smell
porteble outfits which out only rough lumer, shingles, lath,
etoe The custom waa to set the mill in the most convenient
place to a desirable tract of timbere. Logging was not care
ried on at any distance from the mill nor on the steeper or
rougher grounde Only the beat trees were cut and needless
to say the utilisation was poor, while no sffort was mede to
dispose of the resulting slashe.

The lumbering business on aaything like a large
soals degan with the coming of the rallroads. This may be
said to cover the period from 1832 tv 1880, By far the lare
gest part of the timber was out during this period and the
following ten yeurse This was also the psriod of gfeatest
development of the stute and of the wood using Mlustries
in the region of the Plke lHational Forest.

Then gold was flrst clscovered in the Idaho Springs,
Central City region, the hills surrounding the present towns
of Blackhawk, Central City and Nevadeville were covered with
timbere. On the dry south slopes sceattering yellow pine wap -
found while the north slopes bore & dense growth of lodgepcle TR
pine, Engelmann spruce and other minor speocies in mixture. : -l
Due to the rocky charecter of the hills and the shallow soil
as woll as to the yreaut ires whioh are esid to have swep:
this ocountry prior to 1860, the trees of the forest were of
small size, averaging from ten to twenty inches in diemeter,
Heavy stands of large timber were only to be found in the
mountaine et some distance from the mines.

Wood was one of the greatest necessitiaes in the
early mining oceamps and there was alweys & steady demand for
lumber, building logs, lagzing, stulls end fuel wood, from
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1859 to 1873. Nothing but wood was burned in the =mills,
mines and homes. The railroad did not reach Bleokhewk until
safter 1873, and even after its advent coal did not diaphoe
wood “or & good many yearse. This was largely due to the
faot that the haul up the hill from Blackhewk to Central
City, Nevada and Russell Gulch was very expensive, and the
railroad did not reach Central City until 1878. 1In general,
it may be said that the various camps in this locality de-
pended, for a period of twenty years, entirely on the sure
rounding forests for thcir supply of fuel, building materiel
and mining timbers.

The first sawmill in this region was loocested in
1860 at the junotion of Eureks and Prosser Gulches in what
is now the heart of the City of Central. This was a small
mill with a daily cepacity of about six thousand feet B.l,
The same year & seoond mill was set up in Russell Gulch by
& man named Bernes. In 186) a mill was set in North Clesr
Creek just above the town of Bleckhawk, and in 1862 & seocond
mill was built in Missouri CGulch near the mouth of Stewart
Guloh. "Judge™ Chase Withrow had a mill in Peck Guloh in
1868, and later moved it to Guy Hill. In 1864 Smith and
Tyler had a set on Smith Hill to the northeeat of 3lackhawke.
In the '70's and sarly *'80's there was & number of mills on
Jonny Liné Creek, at Apex, in Boulder Park end also in Peok
Flats, several miles west of Ceatral City. By 1870 the time
ber immedistely surrounding Central und Blaockhawk had all
been cut off and the mills moved, while by 1880 there was
not a set within eight or ton miles of the gold cemps.

The sawnmills mentioned were small, cutting on the
saverage of from six thousand to ten thousand feet board mea~
sure per daye The market demand kept them runninz steadily,
but as timber was plentiful and there was & ready sale for
small siged stuf'f and fuel wood only the best tress weres out
for lumber.

An article by John Price, Surveyor Cenzral of
Colorado, in +he "finers Register™ of October 3, 1864,
states that,

"In the five years that the mines have been worked,
at least half thet extent of land (40,000 acres) has been en=-
tirely stripped of timber, and now wood end shaft timbers are
hauled from two to five miles to oupply the mines of the Grege
ory section. Wood is now worth fourteen dollars a ocord, and
its cost must incresse unless something is done to loauon the
congumption or inorenge the supply. The timber required for
shafts slone will soon axhsust the timber now accessible.”
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While the sawmills played an irmportant part in the
outting off of the tree growth surrocunding the mirning c-mps,
gtill it is the mine timber operstors and wood haulers to
whom the total destruection of the forest must be laid. The
sreat demand of the district was for fueld wood, and we find
that as early as March 1863, the wood haulers formed an asso=
ciationtnding themselves not to sell cord wood for less
than five dollars per corde Wood was hauled exclusively by
bull teams but even through the uss of these antiquated methe
ods 1t took less than tcn years to oompletely strip the hills
within five miles of Central of all trees, blg and little, so
rapid wasg the cutting. As ocord wood became more =zosrose,
stumps were grubbed out and ugsed for fuel, whieh accounts for
the large areas of barren and stumpless lands whioh surround
the ocemps at the present time.

In the '60's and '70's rcugh lumber scld for twenty
to forty Aollsrs per thousend feet board measure, while metched
boards and extra widths suitable for sluice boxes, etc.,
brought eighty to one hundred dollars per thousand feet board
measurs, Logging sold for from twelve to fift:ien cents per
stiok and stulls for ten cents per inch in diemeter st the
small end.

Some minin- was done in the eizhties near the head
of the North FPork of the South Platte River, which operetions
used & considersble amount of timber near timber line. The
value of the mines in thie region did not prove hizh enough
to warrent the building of a reilroad and the operations
gradually withered until they are of very little consequence.
However, the building of the rsilroad from Denver to South
Park in 1889 resulted in almost complete destruction of the
Forest alons the cenon of the North Fork of the South Platte
and in the vieinity of Hoosier, Switoh and Kenosha sumit.
This cutting was gonerally preceded by fires purposely set
in order to chespen logzin: operationss (and bscause opumtors
did not have to pay for dead timber « RGC)

The ¥znitou Park~[ivide country supplied an im=-
mense amount of timber and intensive lcgging operations were
cerried on., Menitou Peart wes lergely logred prior to the
construction of the Colorado Midland railroad. In this opere
ation & logging railroad was built along Trout Creek from the
vicinity of Woodland Park about fif'teen miles north. Portions
of this railroad grade with the deocayed ties in place may still
be seen, The cut from this genersl region is rouchly estimated
as 100,000 M feet. ‘any small mill sets were the rule and
their locetions are =411l discernible slong Trout Creek and
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in all its emaller tributaries. The ocountry farther wesi in
the heads of West Creek, Trail Creek und around Leke George

has nlso been logzed very extensively, although this occurred

mostly at a later date, bezinning with the construction of
the Colorado Midlend railroed in 1886+ The fact that from
nearly all of this country, where cutting was not followed
by fires, a seoond cut is now possible is most encouraging
and gives us valuable information as to the practicable ro-
tation period in yellow pine and Douglas fir over a good pore
tion of the forest.

Duffield Brothers brought down a lot of Douglas fir
poles in 1887. They 2lso hauled cord wood for fcour dollars
& cord for the wood and one coller for delivering et the
brick yards in Coloredo Springs. They would haul two oords
per loade

In 1888 @ bunch of sawnmill men were arrested at
Florissant and taken to Lenver for stesling government time
ber. The men were Spurlock, Sum Rewerk end T. S. Clow.

Mr. McElroy hed a tie chute just west of the pree
sent stetion of Husted. He furnished one hundred thoussnd
ties for the Denver and Rio Grende in 1880. He also furnighed
many narrow geuge ties until 1890,

The Woocdland Lumber Company had a corntract in 1880
to furnish 3,000 ¥ board feet for the Colcrado Fuel and Iron
Company at Puetlo. This was the bigzest mill in the country
at that time., It was shipped in from Nova Scotia.

There were several mills in the Terrysll region in
1880. Slat had one on the Platte River near Lake George.
Weter was usod for power while the saw was of the model that
worked up and downes They could start it going and have a
nice visit while it amed off a boarde They put out a ;ood
uniform grade of lumber, however, and sawed probably fifteen
hundred to two thousand feet per day.

Anson Allen set up a water power mill on his rench
on Tarryall in 1882, Before thls date the logs were hewed
and shingles split. He bought the mill principally for his
own lumbere. :

The John ¥ouat Lumber Company of Denver had the
first sawmill operations on the Platte River about 1880, Mr.
John Runge worked for this company for some fifteen years and
it is diffioult to estimate the number of feet that he removed
from lend tributary to the river. He had mill settings at
South Platte, Night Hawk and at Runge's ranche.
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The Towner Broihers had a mill setting on Bufrfale
Creek in 18828 and 1883« One wes located at the Trost place
anc one at Beldy flatse They aversged ten thousand feet per
day for the time they operated. Horrison and Bingham had
one setting on Buffalo Creek at the half way rock and opere

" ated four yearse. Most of the time they worked day and nizht

shifts. They averaged twenty thousand feet a day. They out
shingles, lethes and lumbers Another setting was on lMorrie
son Creek at the Hey's homestende They were there for two
yearss The date of their first cuttinz was 1882. J. A.
Rockefeller loocated on Buffalc Creek Just below the Redskin
ranger station in 1838 and sawed for two years. Luring this
time he moved his mill twice. Ome setting wes on the Cater
Homeatead and ons just a ghort distance up Redskin Craek,
He averaged sbout ten thousand feet per day.

A man by the name of John Vitchell had one sswmill
setting on the Higginson ranch in Spring Gulch in 1885, and
sawed three years. He also had & setting in Shingle iill
Gulch end sawed thres yearss. iiis timber wes made into lume
ber, lathes snd shingles. The output of his mill was about
fifteen thouesand feet per day.

A Mr. ¥iller operated a sawmill in Hiller Guloh in
1885«1886 snd had two settingse His timber was made into lume
ber, lathes and firisghed lumber, such as flooring, eto.

This information was furnished by Je. We Green who
now operetes & store at Buffalo and who worksed for sevsral
of these milla when he first landed at Buffalo in 1879,

The mill set in Lost Park waz financed by the Me-
Phee and McGinnity Lumber Company in 1888 They were located
thers for two years and did not tske out over two million
feet. They hed two settings, one in Lost Park and one over
the divide on the Cralgz Creek side. They lost considerable
money in this operstion and removed the rille These facts
were furnished by Hs Cs Gille His present address is not
known.

Lumbering Overations in the West Creek Courty .

(Data furnished by Wm. H. Hiockox of Woodland Park, Colo.)

A very large amount of timber has bsen cut in the
country surrounding West Creek during the past twenty years.
A partial list of the sets, where they weroe located, and the
approximete date of operation follows:
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Along West Creek south of the present town of Veat
Croek, 1887«1389, Bush and Adams, Tom Fichols, Jones and T.
8. Claugh,

Along Treil Creek, 1898-1302, Karneigh, Tom Nichols
and George Ginsels

Seotion 38, T. 10 &, R. 70 W., 6th P, M., 1896,
MeCalpin.

Kear town of West Creek, 1895, Honry Lawe
Near Sheep Nose Mountein, 1386, Henry law.

Soldier Mountein ocountry east of Manitou Park, 1900
to 1907, Henry Johns, Brindle and Beach, William Hickox and
George facdlers

At Clark Ranch near West Craek, 1801, Bush &nd Adams,
Honry Taw (three sets) and Nichols.

On Rule Creek, 1899-1900, Bowman.
In Menitou Park, 1900, Green.

On West Turxey Creek, 1899-1902, Green, and Scott
ané Potter.

On Fast Turkey Cresk, 1887, W, J. Davis and Jack
Xorris.

South of lLake Cheesman, 1902, McCalpin.

The average tims put in at a set by ths above listed
lumbermen was from eight months to a year. In a few ceses a
stay of from two to three years was nade in the same locality,
but not elways at the same aset.

The ordinary mill was & cirocular saw affair, 26 H.P.
or more boiler, cable or rachet feed, and capable of cutting
from six thousand to ten thousand board feat mar day.

The output was principally rouzh lumber and dimen=
sion stuffe. In these early days ties wer haoked not sawed.
The lumber haul to market or shipping point veried from five
to twenty miles.
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Twenty years ago when the mining boom was at its
height the best markets for lumber were to be had in the
Cripple Creek district, at West Creek and in Denver. The
bulk of the material ocut north of the town of West Creek
was hauled cown the river to Night Hawk and shipped to Den-
ver, while wost of the material eut south of West Cree: was
hauled out to the Colorado Yidland or Midlend Terminal Reile
roeds and shipped to Cripple Creek.

There was also considerable local demand around
West Creek as this was a boom town in these days. FHenry
Law at one time had a set for eight months in this locality,
the entire output being used locally., Hewed ties were sold,
for the most part, to the Colorado Midland railroad,

Although the demand for lumber twenty years ago
was rood, very low priges wsre recelived, Mill run did not
avereze over twelve dollers to fifteen dollers per thousand
hoard feet,

0l¢ time lumbormen did not hesitate to put in a
mill wherever there was a good logging chances If the land
was petentad, they purchased the timber and often times the
land also. If government timber adjoined the petented land
and was tributary ‘o the set, they ocut it without hesitation.
In most oases, however, it waz straight zovernment timber on
publio domain or on timber lend reszerves that was cute In
those deys it was simply & ocmse of first oome first sgerved,
and in boeting the other fellow to the timber. There ware
no officers to look after the overrment's interests and no
one wasg interested enough to pay any attention to the theft
of stumpsges Fven in later years this seme practios wes ocone
tinued and a number of the old timbers caught in trespess by
the government and made to pey for the timber. E£ince the
oreation of the National Forests this method of sesuring free
stumpage hes entirely disappeared.

In the country listed under the old tire opsrations
there are at prescnt two or throe small Service sales of green
timber. Logging operations are, however, prastically at s
standstill. This state of affrirs is said to ha due to the
following causes.

le Lack of easy logzing chances; the hest and easiest
sets having heen cut out.

2, Stagnation of the lumber market, both locally and
in Denver and the Cripple Creek distrioct.

3+ Competition created by the importatien of Pacifie
Comst lumber.
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The charscter of old time operations has besn little
changeds About the same capecity mill 1s still used and cute
tings done intarmittently. Closer utilizetlon is now required
by Forest Service rogulstions and a stumpege price charged for
timber, but it is cleimed that this would not hamper the indus=~
try if the market would only pick up, Eesy chances and lax
methods have given sway in a measure to closer utilizetion and
the prectice of & few business principles. The result is about
the same in both casese-~the lumberman meakes & living and some
times & smell profit.

Lumbering Operation Along the North Ferk of the Scuth Platte

(Data furnished by Ae Re KEnisely of Shawnee, Colo.)

wWithin the last forty years it is estimated thet
there have been over forty separate mill sets along the North
Fork of the South Platte River, on Desr (reek and in the Hall
Culch, Geneva Valley and Scott Gomer Creek ocountry. No acou=
rate figures on the smount of timber cut are available, but
there is no question but that the output wes very large. The
greater pert of this cutover country is now within the Dounde
eries of the Pike Naticnel Forest. A list of the old mill sets
within the period mentioned, &s given by Mr. Knisely, who is
as old lumberman in this country, followsi

1. John Xouat Lumber Compary had s set near Eztabrook
from 1879 to 1882 (four years). The daily capacity of the
mil)l was twenty thousand board feet. They also had a scoond
set near Fstabreok in 1887. The daily cepacity of thet mill
was fifteen thousend board feet.

2. Joe Morris had & set at Insamont in 1881-1882 (a yeear
and & half). The deily cepac ty of the mill was ten thousand
boerd feet,

3. Jim Payne had a set two miles up the Creek from Glen
Islse in 1881~1882 (two yearz)s The caily cepmoity of the mill
was ten thousand board feet,

4. Johnle Morris had a ret 2t Baileyes ir 187B<1879
(two years). He cut up Crow Guloh and on Crow Hille The dale
ly capacity of the mill was twenty-five thousand beard feet.

5« Hilderbrend had a sst et Beileys in 1882 (one year)

and also at Glen Isle in 1883~1884 (a year and a half). The
deily capeoity of that mill was six thousend board feet.
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6e San Rcwark had a set at Grousemont in 1881-1882
( fourteen months). The dsiley opacity of the mill was sight
thousand board feete.

7. W. H. Clay's set on Craig Creek in 1883-1884 (two
yvears) hac a deily oapacity of eight thousand board feet.

8¢ Charles Schneider had a set at Slaghts (now Chawnee)
in 1897 (one year)e The daily capaocity of the mill was five
thousand hoard feet.

. A sst by A. R. Knisely at Shawnee 1908 (one year)
had a deaily capacity of ten thousend board feet.

10. Joe Horris' set at the Riceville Spur above Shawnee
in 18580-1881 (two years) had a daily capacity of ten thousand
board fests

11, Corliss had & set in Crow Gulch above 3aileys in
1387 ( one year). The deily capacity of the mill was six
thousand bosrd feet.

12. Jim Payne had a set in Crow Gulch in 1880 (one Year).
The daily capacity of that mill was eight thousand board feet.

13, Sam Rewnrk's set et Singleton in 1883~1884 (two
years) had a deily caprcity of ten thousani board feet.

14, Buno (0ld men) had & set one mile south of Weller in
1896 (one year). The daily capacity of the mill was six
thousand board feet.

16, Walt Buno had a set at Riceville Spur &bove Shawnee
in 18935 (one year); also near Grent in 1897 (one ysar). The
daily capacity of the mill was six thousend board feet.

In the Valley &nd Geneva Park ocountry there were a
number of big; sets twenty-five to thirty-five years ago. 01d
man Buno, “snry Law, J. Baker and Hal Gomer all had mills in
this locality for from three to five yearse Scott Gomer also
cut in the zulch whioch now bears his name for five yars, the
daily oapacity of his mill being twslve thousand board fset.

In the Gibson Gulch country near the heaé of the
North Fork Cherles 8mith ren & mill for two years for a man
named Hetheway. Cutting was also done on the mountain slopes
to the south of Webster. Joes Lamping of Grant cut a large
anount of timber on the south side of the river near Webstep
for the charcoalldlns located at that town. Clean cutting
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of everything over six inches in diameter was doney the cutput of the
kilng being shipped to the Grant Smelter &t Denver.

In the Deesr Creek country, atout four miles west of the
Henry Vonder rench, Stewart and MoConnel set for five years in 1886
to 1900, The daily capacity of the mill was fifty thousand board
feet, but it was not run steadlly. After the mill was moved out fire
got into the slesh in 1901 and burned over the wholec heed of Deer Creeke.

A greater nart of the timber cut at the above mentioned sets
was loceted on Covernment land. Along the Xorth Fork of the fouth Platte
cutting on patented land was the general rule, although local lumberman
dld not hesitate to oull out the bast of the publio dommin timber tribu=-
tary to their logginz chences, A great cdeal of this old time patented
land reverted to the Government through soript after the timber had been
cute Iand vhich was not thus turned beck wes bouzht up in later years
by amsll lend owners throuzh the payment of the toxes due. There is
84111 considerable good cimber alongz the North Fork, but it is in rocky
end insccessible places, its present existence beiny due entirsly %o the
diffioulties of logying it. Ol time loggers sslec'ed nothing but easy
chances as they figured that there was no money in the hard sects.

Practioally all the timber cut along the North Fork of the
Platte was hauled to the railroad, now the Colorado and Southern South
Park Iivieion, and shipped to Denver. In 1878 the railroad d reached
Baileys snd was later extaended on up the walley. Denver was a fairly
steady rarket, but -rices were lows ill run avereged shout seventeen
dollers per thousand boerd feet and from that on up to twenty~two dollars
for extra cleer, lon; stuff, Sewed lumher and dimension stuff constituted
the major output of the mills. Only one or two milla seed ties as the
rallroad didnot look with favor on this class of sleepers. Wheraver
outting was done in a tie stand, hacking was the general rule.

Jo W. Spielman lived vt Gillette in 1894 and lo:ged the timber
ahnve Woods Lekee MoRoonsy cut at the head of Putney Gulch in 1894.
Arthur Putney opersted his mill ahout 1900s George Sadler had a mill
at Newport in 1313. John Buchannon opereted east of Midlend in 1584,

In 1895 there was a sawmill e+ Camn Vigil opersted by Cunninge
heme There was also & mill at Wild Rose Cump and another at the Elk
Ranch operated by H. C. Rsthke., John Stinbeuzh operated a mill in Jones
Park in 1908,

In 1863 He H. Harkins bullt & sawmill at Desd Man's Canyon.

Jinm Bell operated & water power mill at the Keston Rench on Little Fountain
Creesk in 1B69.
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Forest Fires

The information on forest fires in the northern end of
the forest is meager. Early settlers can recall fires whioh occurred
in the territory, but are unable to give very accurate information either
as to the date of their actual occurance or the amount of dammge done by
thems The country around the gold ocamps was stripped of timber so rapidly
that there was practioally nothing left on the ground to burn.

1861, On Yovember 1, the Nevada camp was entirely
wiped out by fire. Prior to the dsy of this conflagretion a
small brush fire had been burning for some time to the northwest
of the tomn. A high wind carried sparks from this fire into
sevoral hundred cords of fuel wood, stacked on the flat to the
west of the camps Fanned by the wind this fire got beyond ocontreol
and swept through Nevadaville.

1868, On June 18, “"The fire which has been raging
for some days past in the neighborhood of Missouri Gulch has
done an immense amount of demage in the destruction of timber.
eess These fires which sweep yearly over the mountaing
are a great misfortune to our people and will he severely felt."”

1868, March 30, a fire was reported burning at the head of
Prosser Gulch. Betwesn two and three hundred men from the gold osmps/
worked on it before it was finally under controle

18686. The Lower Falls fire aoross the divide to
the southwest of Centrel in Clesr Creek County was one of the
biggest fires which had ever occurred in the ocountry up to
this time.

1871« Fall River Fire. This was enother very large
fire which burned over the headwaters of Fall River in Clear
Creek County to the west of the Central distriot,

Mammoth Basin Fire. The greatest conflagration that
has ever ocourred in Gilpin County was the Mammoth Guloh fire.
This fire burned out Mammoth Gulch, ten miles northwest of
Central, and then spread esstward through the mountsins lying
to the north of North Clear Cresk almost to Dory Hill region
near Blackhswk, a diastance of ten or twelve miles.

In the year 1879, September 19, a fire sturted in o
Twelve Yile Creek by campera was allowed to run uncontrolled R
for several days in the country west and northwest of Centrsl i
Citys A high wind ocarrlied the flames into Freeman Gulch, Pine : ]
Creek and North Clear Creek sbove the mouth of Pine and burned »
over a lerge territory and deatroyed much fine timber. The
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smoke from this fire was so dense that lamps were necessary
for light in Central City as early as 3 P.M,.

1881, A man named Wetstein, who was burning brush
in Miners Guloh, allowed the fire to get sway from hime. As
a result the country betwsen Miners Gulch and New York Guloh
was burned over, but with little resultant damage, as the
fire ran principally on cutover lands.

The first forest fire of record was in June 1889
whon three unknown men were burned to ceath on Chiocago Creeke

The next fire of whioch mention is made was in 1889
when the watershed of Leavenworth Creek in the vicinity of
Green and Clear Lakes was burned over,.

‘The large burn on the Tarryall range oocourred bee
fore Allens settled there in 1870, There was a big fire .
somewhers in the lost Park region that year howaver. Great
oclouds of amoke came up apparently just over the horison and
% was 80 smoky at times one oould see only s short distance.

Pire of 1880

A fire originsting south of what is now known es
Victor was the result of olearing done in June by an old sete
tler on the Love Renchy and spread northeasterly over Bull Mountaln
over low mountains end entering the forest in Sections 7 and 18, T
15 8., R. 88 W., burned out the head of Bison Creek aoross the
Seven lakes to the west slopes of Middle Beaver Creek.

This is the data given by Charles love to Ranger
Jo H. Patterson. Love stated that he and his brother with
the assistance of four or five other men worked several days
attempting to extinguieh it but were unable to do so. The
fire burned over several thousand acress

Following is a report on a fire in Section 30,
T 7 Se, Re 783 W,, from a letter written to the Cormissioner,
General land Office, July 24, 1902, from Bailey, Colorado,
by Ev» Te Allen, Forest Inspector.

®"0n June 11, 1501, when Ranger Hooper was still
working on the line, Mrs. B. Sohwartz, the cook at the paper
company's oamp, emptied a pan of ashes into a pile of brush
and in a few minutes the slashing was a fire. There werse
twenty~one men in the camp at the time but after beating
beok the fire until they could save their personal effects,
they made no attempt to put it out but retreated to a safe
distance to spend the night.
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"Hooper inplored the foreman to put the men to
work but instead of deing so he shipped them on the firat
train to Jeffurson where they began another traspsass. Hooper
worked on the fire sontinuously from June 11 until July &,
toward the last securing scme help after much trouble,

"The fire burned over sabout six hundred aeres of
heavy spruce timber running about three thousand feet and
ten cords of wood to the acre. It was started by a paper
company employee, gained headway because of the bLrush made
by the company trespass and might have besn put out had the
foreman not refused to lend assistance.

"Po make matters worse the outters set another fire
about helf a mile distant in order to meke 1t appear it was
started by campers. The wind changed, however, soc the two
fires did not join."™

Tyler Guloh Fire

In August 1908 a fire started in Tyler Gulch from
a wood ohopper's ocamp and it is claimed that it was started
intentionally. However, this fire burned for two weeks and
was fought by the State and the Forest Service. Thia fire
was left and reported out but in about ten days it broke out
again and burned for three weaeks. This one wes the larger
of the two. The entire watershed of Tyvler Gulch was burned
out and the fire ran arocund the hill and burned out the head
of Foster and Shut Town Gulches. A total of approximately
three thousanc sores was burned over and about three million
feet of timer was killed and destroyeds W. H. Hooper was
the renger in charge of this district at the time and A. R.
Knisely of Shewnee was ranger in ohargs of the Devil's Head
diatricte Xnisely and Supervisor Micheelson wors working on
a fire on the west side of Devil's Head &t the time the sec-
ond fire broke outs The; oould see it plainly from there and
left the fire they were working on in charge of a crew {ore=
man and drove by team to Sedalie, then went by train to Den~
ver. They learned upon errival in Denver that it was a ger~
ious fire and organigzed a crew of one hundred men and proe
ceeded to the fire the same night by a special train up Plette
Canone. By the time they were on the fire line it had zotten
under such headway that their efforts were prectioally of no
avails Every available man in this part of the Platte Canon
wag fighting it but 1t was not until a snowstorn thet ceme
in September that the fire was completely extingulshed. While
this fire was burning, ashes fell in Bailey, eight miles away,
until the ground weas white.
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Mt. Evans Fire

A fire on the slones of Mt. Evans burned over six miles lqp‘ri
in June, 1908, The Forest Servios had a big crew of men here before it
oould be extinguished.

Deer Cresk Fire

A fire on Dser Cresk in June, 1818 (June 21-24) burned over
approximately six hundred sores before it was under controle

Ceneva Fire

This fire in July, 1916, burned four deys before it was under
controle The area burned was about five hundred acres but about forty-five
men were employed to extinguish ite

Most of the fires which burned the South Park country were in
1879 and 1881 The timber across the river from Fairplay burned in 1870,
The fire in the vioinity of Horseshoe occurred in 1879, Hoosier Pass also
burned the same yeare The fire on Bleok “‘ountain burned in 1881, A smll
sore between Feirplay and Alma burned in 1890s Carelessness is the cause
given for these fires.

Lower Beaver Meadows Fire

Ocourred in the late 70'se It burned over about two hundred
sores in & fairly opsr stand of timber but did considersble damage. It
was scoidentally started by John Evans when on a ocamping trip to that
vioinity and Evans, who wac then a boy, worked very herd to put it oute
The limits of this fire are quite plainly marked at the present time
around the edge of the meadows, to the north.

Upper Beaver Meadows Fire

Oocurred in 1891 and burned over about one hundred aocres. It
is not known how this fire started but the Fvans' and the Crossons' all
went to it and got it under controle It durned in a fairly open region
just above the meadows on the north slopese It is presumed that it starte
od from s osmpers fire eince it appesred to originate near the edge of the
openinge

Vanoe Creek Fire:

This is the largest fire that has coourred in the Basin. It
oocurred in 1891 or 92 and was started by campers at the Falls on Vance
Creeks Although all the neighbors turned out on this fire at various
times, it burned for several monthe end covered a considerable portion of
the head of the Creek towards the Needles. Several hundred acres were
burned overe

Truesdale Fire

This is the last fire of any consequence that has ocourred in
 Bear Creek Basin. It ocourred in July, 1909, and burned over four or five
acres and was -tartod b lightninge All the neighbors turned out and soon

got it under control before any great amount of demage was done.
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&8s to encourage minings The out everything down to four
inch diemeter over all the ocountry sround Kenoshe Pass and
fisbater. These ovens ran until the panioc of 1893. They
were closed cown ovsr nizht and never ctarted up again.

Coke was used insteecd. At the time they were abandoned Joe
Lamping owned every oven in the state, & total of one hun~
dred fifty-two. He lost his entire fortune of about three
hundred thouseand dollars. II there had been no stop made
for another ten or fifteen years, it is doubtful if there
would be any merchantable timber left at the rete they wore
cutting 1t out.

A ¥r. Bradshsw had & charcoal pit on the north end
of Jeven Lakess It waz built by piling long lozs twelve to
eighteen feet wicde. The matsrial used was bristle cone pine
covered with spruce boughse A six to eight inch cavering of
earth was placed over the pile, leaving & few vents for a
N limited amount of air to get in. He received ten cents a

bushel for burning while Mr, Smith, who hauled it to 0ld
Town hotels, received twenty cents per bushel.

GRAZING

Grazing was one of the major industries throughout
the area, Included in the Pike National Forest. The reglion
used most, however, war that around the louth ”latte, South
Park and Black Hountain.

South Park Rezion

The region was first settled in the early sixties
end portions of it have been produoing hay crops sinoe that
times The settlement was repid for a time following the mine
ing activity around Fairplay end Alma, about thirtly miles
west, and praotioally all the land that is now alienated was
patented at that time. The originel entrymen have, however,
died or sold out their holdings, and the land was gradually
pessed intc the contrel of comparatively large oattle and
land owners, and thies condition hes existed for the past fife
tesn or twenty years. In fact, practioally all the patented
lanc¢ within the area is now owned by only six outfits. The
value of these arid lands for greszing nurposes has beon rece
ognized for many years, and oattle ralsing hes always beon
the principal industry of the locsl settlers,

3efore the crestion of the Scuth Platte Forest Ree
serve, which included this area, the cattle grazed freely
over all the region with little or no rezulation on the nart
of their ownerss. The result was that the range was overstocked




and depleted. At e nmeeting of the Park County ftock Growers!
Association on Nevember 24, 1906, & report whioh was subnite
ted to the Foraster at Weshington, D. C. under dato of Noveme~
ber 28, 1906, resclutions were adopted requesting the Porcster
to consider cooperating with the looal renge users in the ocone
struction ol & fence axtending alon; the boundary of *the Tore
est to seperate the cattle grazing under permit from the oate
tle whose cwners did not ocere to use the FNetional Forest range.
The grazing had, up until this time, been handled on the "On
and Off™ basis, which proved very unsatisfrotory because the
lowal people desired to hols their immediete ranse for winter
uss, but outside dattle were oonstantly drifting in during the
summer, with the result that the grasing was poor Just et the
time when most needed by the owners of the permitted sa‘tle,

Eventually the Forest Service furnished meterials
and the stockmen built about sixteen miles of fence. This
work was done in 1908, exoept about two miles which was built
in 1911 by Ed R. Berlow, Ce A. Wilkin, K. L. Rader and John
VWisllaoce, ranchmen then residing along the Terryall edjoining
the rengee The newly constructed fence joined privately
owned fenoes on the north and fences or naturel barriers on
the east, meking & complete enclosure known es the Eagle
Rock Drift Pasture and containing about fourteen thousand
aores.

Shortly aftsr this & fenoce was constructed by prie
vate parties north of Terryall elong the west side of T. 8
Se, Re 786 W., which, with a short drift fence to natursl bare
riers on the north, orested another division known as the
Rook Creek Fills renge.

The grasing probler goon adjusted itself. The
oattle growers using National Forest range put their cattle
during the summer in what ls mown as lost and Cralg Parks,
which are extensive high mountain meedows situated six to
elight miles north and east hotween the Tarryall Mountains
and the Platte River renges The cattle were taken up about
the first of June and in the frll were allowed to drift down
into these large pastures where they remained during the fall,
winter and springs, and were fed some during severs weather,
By this method ths local cattle growers were sble to make
their rather limited supply of winter feed o further and
thus were able to run larger herds of cattle then they other=
wise could,
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¥any cattle were driven into South Park from Texas and the
Arkansns river bottome. They were grazed here in *he summer., In the
fall they were either driven to market or else moved to the lower range
to winter. later on losal men attempted to winter gtook here. Severe
winters caused heavy losses. Sam Hartsel wes the “irect men to locate a
ranch and harvest hay to feed cattle during the winter. The ocattle
gregzed more in the open park than in the hills. Orass wes plentiful and
very little trouble waz experienced with loco. The firet sheep were k
brought into the park around 1876. They were owned by & man named Myers.
Thera was very little trouble batweon the sheep and cattlo men in this
OOuntry.

The Case ranch at the foot of Kenosha Pass was one of the oldest
ranches in the Parke It was also a stege station on the line between Dene
ver end the Park. The Hartsel rench st Hertsel wes the frst stock rench

_ established. The Cuiraud et Garo wes also another early renchs The Salt
N Works ranch was established in the early 60's.

As late as 1870 there were only about ten renches in the Prrke
These reanches were in especially favored places or run in conneotion with
& stage station. The Perk was consicdered as a sumnaer renge for cattles
Lerge numbers of orttle were grezed during the summer months, but were
moved to the lower country during the winter, Hay was valusble at this
tine so the eerlies%t ranchers elso wintared their oattle south towards the
Arkansas River. Later as more of the country was settled the ranchers bee
gan to winter their cattle on their ranches. Mozt of the ca*tle in the Park
were the long~horned Texas breed, but it is sald that the Hartsel outfit
always had 2 good hread of stooke

The first bend of sheevp was brought into the Park in 1876 and was
owned b: Werd Mexie and a pertner by the name of Myers. This band of sheep
wes grezed on the head of Trout Creeks At this “ime wmany people thought
thet sheep would be 2 failure, and this bend was wetohed with intemst.
Later a man b *he nams of Dudley atarted into the sheep business. Joe
Rozers was the third party to try sheep. He began the sheep husiness be-
twesn 1880 and 1886,




The Cattle Industry by J. Higginson

Jonathan Higginason wes one of the first stockmen
to range stock on the South Platte range. He first ocame
here in 1869, and squatted on land along the river above
Buffelo. In 1874 he riled on this land. He acquired soms
stock and to keep things going he would freight part of lhe
time betwen Denver and Lesdville., iiis largest holdings in
stook were around one thousand head. During the summer
months part of his stock with others in this same locality
were criven cver the Blue River for summer foragee. Other
men using this renge in the early seventies were George
Tarbell, F. C. Webster and Z. T. Freeman. They were loostod
on the Craham ranch, Wellington Lake anc the old Johnson
ranch in the order nemed. Theee three men with Higginson
ran somé four thousand head of stock with very little winter
haye They olalm that the range was at least four tiues as
gocd as it 1s today on the lower Platte and Buffalo ranges.
They mention Gremma gress as by far the predominating grass
in early days. In the early eighties there were sevceral
years of extreme dry weather when it was necessary to remove
a largs part of the stook from this range. It scems as
though there were no heavy losses in thoss days from dige
ecses or polson planta on this rangs.

‘ Later such ner as . ¥. Amnons, Johnson end ¥nite,
Ghost, Culver, Phelps and Graham moved into this locality
and engaged in the stock business. Ammons owned the land
along the river from Corbins to Trumball flats and lived at
Corbin's plece, locelly ocelled the "™White House". It is roe
ported that Ammons was very hostile to any new homesteaders
locating in the country and hes used many underhand methods
in driving them out.

The Black Hountain Fegion

Data by Je T. Witcher.

Settlement end zraging of ca“tle were very closely
related. Az early ae 1372 there wes quite & little srasing
over the regions John Bender, W. J. Hammond and Henry Beck-
ham settled on Currant Creek about 1872, John R. Witcher
(7« T, Witcher's father) then lived on Four Mile Creek.
William A. Stump settled at High Park in 1872, Other old




timp stockmen of ebout this dete sre:r William Griddle, Wough
(augh Mountain), Jeorze Sreem, in 3outh Park; Sam Hartsel
(town), Joe Rogers, Mullock, old 1 M rench on Badger Creek,
John Sims, foot of thirty-Nine ile ‘suntain.

The fMret ranches gettlaed on Black Mounteln range
were in connection with Fddy Brothers grasing operetions
about 18803 the VVN ranch on the head of Rye llough and ffot
of Dlack ountein and 160 acres in Long Gulche Wartin Morose,
0ld time bed man from Texas and an Eddy cownan, filed on Long
Guloh and Eddy on thse V'K, Woruvse was algo d notorious horse
and cettle thief end was finally killed in Texas.

Eddy brothers bought out large cattle ontfits in
Texag, four to five thousand steere, end drove them through
to thie renge. Patented lands vere used for head cemps and
a little hay wes put up for saddle horses. ¥o cattle or
renge stuff was fed at all. Dave Welker ceme into the coun=-
try with an Eddy trail herd at the age of seventeen, and is
still an active cowman of the region. About this same time
John and "T" Witcher and J. T, Witcher were slso large cet~
tle owners of the seme rezion. They hed from five thousend
to gix thousend heed. A reguler woundup was run from the
region of Pueblo up Badger Creek and +the Arkansas river,
across the west side of South Park tc Teirplaey, then back
by Jeffsrson and the central part of South Park, then on
the north and east zide of the Platte river, Black Mourtsin
and then ocompleted the oircle. Six or eigzht wagons were run
with two hundred tc three hundred horses in the "eavvy" and
thirty to forty men, including several cooks snd horse wrange
lers. ¥itcher's ocutfit often branded one hundred to one hune
drod twenty celves a day in the Four Mile region. The Mullook
(1 ¥) outfit ran from seven to elght thousand cettle and often
brended from one hundred twenty-five to one hundred fifty head
of calves a day in the Badger Cresk rerion. Horse ané cattle
stealing, shooting scrsepes and booze periiesa were quite common.
The cattle of the several ocutfits wers drifted up tec the Black
Vountain-=South Park region in the epring anc cslves branded
on the spring roundupe They were held in the day herd and
moved to their range in both spring and fall roundups. The
oattle drifted back tec the lower country in the fall,

One notorious cettle thief, Ed Watkins, leader of
& band, was hanged by & mob of cattlemen at Caneon City. Peo~
ple of Cenon City end vielnlty very mouh aroused at this ine

cident and had seversl cowmen arrested. The cowmen then organited,
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and sarmed thomnselves, brought in & lerge bunch of osttle
whose brands had been worked over and stopped aourt proceed-
ings. Some brands changed over were O H toaA , 76 toF% and
1 & to@®. Lverybody went armed and there were neversl
orack sihots, Watkins among the best.

Haverlick, or wild osttle, developed reapldly from
these large herds in the rough occuntry from about larizdale
to 3uena Vista. At cne time there were at least two hundred
heal in the Limestone ridge region neer Jack Hall mounteine.
Jo Te Witcher, Dave Welker, Charles Beckham snd other young
cow punchers had zreat experiences and sport chssing these
wild cettles. Some of the steers, six to eight years old,
weighed up to twelve hundred to thirteen hundred pounds end
maverick bulls and cows, which wore as old, were as lzrge as
theses Nany were oaught snd led out to ranches, many were
chased out anc corralled while many others were shot
in the hillse Very often the ocattle thieves started iu on
the mavericks sand then began working over brands, ruztling
calves and butchering other people's stockse The butchering
business was good at locel towns, rallroecd camps end mizning

CaRpse

The Tarryall Region

Tete given by S. Y. Derby

tarly day cowmen were Coley, Farnum, Packer, Wicks,
Mosher, laialle, Williams, Allen and Derby. (Several local
points were named alter these men.) They renged in the Tarry=
all region during the winter and went up toward the Kenosha
Pass country in the summer, Ca:tle were run in bunoches of
from two hundred to six hundred head, while about three thou~-
sanc head in 8ll wintered heres fSome of the men dld not own
their home ranchj; they just settled or oamped there., Ocos=
slonelly s potato and vegetablc patch end smell piece of hay
lend for saddle horses were worked., They built log drift
fences from hill to hill to hold the stooke

¥hen sheep first came to the Zouth Park country a
"line” was eatablished at Tarrymll bridge near Sugar Loaf
Peak and wes alweys respected,

Crezing on the South Side of Piles Pcak

Tarly users of the vioinity for grasing were Charley
and John Love on Middle and West Beaver Creeks in about 1879,
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Frank Haymen and fether settled in East Beaver and
Rook Creek in about 1882.

We Jo Baird and Bleck Davis, who resided south and
east of where Broadmoor is now loocsted, ran a few cattle at
the hesd of South Cheyenne Crcek in 1882.

He C. Rathke beginning in about 1888 grazed oattle
on east Beaver Creek and in the vioinity of Seven lakes.

Rnggo Yar

A man by the name of Soribner, who had a band of
sheep near Balfour, was killed by Abe Fife over renge troublee
They got into a heated argument and the sheep man piocked up a
roak to throw but was shot by Fife, who was a cowmsn.

The earliest sheep men in the South Park region were
Joe Rogers, Dudle and Chalmers. The fir t sheep came in
about 18688 or 1889. The sheep and cowmen had oommittees who :
established "dead-lines™ and ev:ryone held to them pretty well.
There were no serious troublese A band of sheep was brought
into High Park at an earlier date, about 1870. They were near-
ly all killed by cowmen.

There were no real serious range wars in the region
of the Pike.

GAME

Hunting for market was formerly quite an important
ocoupation. This applies especially to the period from 1870
to 1890, Certain individuals were neturally inolined to this
work because to them it was, in & sense, sport anc the profits
were fairly goods Naturally the slaughter and waste was very
much beyond that which was necessary to supply the market.

The presence of geme and the ability of the early settlers

0 seoure their meat in this way was of the greatest assistance
in the early development of the country. Iomestio animals were
soarce and the provisions obtained on the markets were both
limited in variety and high in price. The various kinda of
wild geme and fish constituted the basis, if not the bulk, of
the entire food supply.

The first game laws for the purpose of nroteoting the
geme and fish of this state were the territorial amcts of 1870.
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Early Game Laws

A law of Harch 10, 1877, relates to trout and other
food fish end repeals the Territorial Act of 1870, from which
we may infer that the earlier sot related to fish only. The
torms of *he law provided a olosed sesson on trout and other food
fish during the mpontls pf Decemher to June, inclusive. It 4
also forbids the use of poison or explosives and requires the <3
placing of fish-ways. It also provides s penalty for placing
sawdust in the streams. The penalty for the violation of the
sot oonsisted of a fine of not less than fifty dollers now
more than three hundred dollarse.

The Aot of March 15, 1877, provided for a olosed
seascon on deer, elk, antelope, mountain sheep and buffale
from Janusry 1 to September l. It also prohibited the killing
of insectivorous birds. A closed season entirely was placed
on wild turkey and quail and an open season on partridges,
pheasanta, grouse and preirie chickens. The penalties for
violation with respeot to birds of all kinds were a fine of
not less than five dollars nor more than fifty dollars for
each offense. The penalty for violation of the law in res~
peot to game animals was not less than twentyefive dollars.
No maximum appesrs to have been fixed. These acts also lim-
ited the t:king of fish and game to reasonable needs. Hunte
ing within the enclosure without permission of the owner and
hunting wish dogs were also prohibited. A bounty of twentye
five cents was placed on eaoh hawk killed.

By the Act of February 10, 1883, the closed season
on elk, deer, antelope, mountain sheep and buffaleo wes length-
ened so as to cover the period from January 1 to September 15,
and made more specifioc limitations on the anount to be taken.
For example, none but butchers was allowed to sell or expose
for sale the saddles and hind quarters of more than one game
animel without having in their possession at the same time
the front quarters of the same. Ko person outside of an ine
corporated oity or tewn oould have the saddle and hind quare
ters of more than one animel in thelr posszession without at
the same time heving the front quarters to same. The ainm of
the law seemed to limit the killing to the needs and to re-
quire full utilisation.

The Aot of April 11, 1891, provided for the eppointe
ment of a State Game and Fish Warden and certein dsputies.
Since that time more and better laws have been passed to pro-
teot the fish and game.
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Lost Park in General

In 1860 when white men first began to come to this
park, a herd of Buffalo from two hundred fifty to three hun-
dred head summered here, but a man by the name of W. W, Web~
ster beran using this range for ocattle and the buffalo soon
lefts However, seventeen head were killed here in the early
nineties by the Freeman Brothers for the hides, but the men
were caught and had to bury the hides in order to evade the
law. The last buffalo seen in this park was during the sume
mer of 1901 by Ce L. Pitgsimmons, then ranger. This one was
an exirs large fellow and his beard nearly touched the ground.

It is reported that he was shot this same fall by
Law Arbuckle for his hide, but whether this is true or not,
he was never seen again,

W, W. Webstoer, a cowman, built the trall though
Figwanm Canon into lLost Park and out to South Parke He trailed
his ca‘tle through here enroute to the mining cemps. Then he
tried summering his omttle here and driving them on in the
fall but the bear killed his cattle and ran them out until he
put out large quantities of strychnine whioch reduced their
number until he was able to hold stock heres A oabin and
barn were bhuilt by Mr, Webster on the South Pork in about
18673 this cabin is still used by the cattlemen of South
Park,

The last grigsly bear seen in lost Park was in the
fall of 1886 on the ridge between Craiz Mesdows and the North
Fork w C. E. McBoth.

Blaok Mountein Rerion

There were many large and smell bears in the Dlaok
Mountain regions One Grizzly killed on the head of Thirtye
One Mile Cresk was reported as weighing seventeen hundred
pounds. He was oslled "Old Yose™ and was the last bip bear
of the regions His operations ren over a period of ten years
in whioch time he killed many cattle, stole much meat from cow
osnps and lived highly on the waste at the slaughter pens.
He killed Jake Redeliff who was hunting deer in the region.
W. He Pigg, who bought the Waugh Mountain or Stirrup Ranch
and was later with the U, S, Biologioal Survey, hunted "Old
Mose™ on several occasions. Pigg and Anthony, & Wyoming bear
hunter, with a paok of dogs, finally killed him on the south
side of Black Mountain about 1806.
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Jo Te Witcher remembers two head of buffalo that
ranged from the Pikes Psak region to Buffalo peskas

Deer and antelope were numerous over the whole re-
gions The hamestesders killed deer and hauled venison to
Colorado Springs and Canon City to sell. Several hundred
of either deer or antelope could be sgeen in & band at one
time in this region,

Tarryall Region

(Data by S. M. Derbdy)

There were large numbers of deer and mountain sheep
in the region. The sheep were found mostly on Tarryall Moun~
tains although there were some on Puma Hills. MocCurdy reported
that he saw sizns of several moose in Puma Hills, mostly north
of Badger Mountain, and at one time he saw four head but was
unatle to shoot sany. No one knows of any being killed.

Other parties told of seelng them and tracks, however.

Few elk were reported in this region. Bears were
quite nurercus but were mostly small ones. A large bald fuoe
bear was ocoasionally seen and finally killsd in the region.
Buffalo numbered about one hundred head in 1880 in the lLost
Park country and they drifted down to the Tarryall Creek In
the spring. It was quite common to sees fif'teen to twenty
head in a bunchs Nre. Vermilllon on the Platte River five
miles below Lake Ceorge practioally lived off of the buffalo
herds He took paock outfit and got his winter's meat. The
renchers generally did not hunt them as they got deer or
mountain sheep so much closers Then too, beef was cheap and
this was most generslly used.

In the early eighties a movement was on foot and
backed by several renchers on Tarryall to have the Lost Park
region made a Netional Park, or something similar, to protect
the buffalo there. Washington officials promised to come out
and look the situation over, but the mein booater of the plan
then sold out and left Tarryall and the matier was dropped.

The last buffalo reported definitely was a large
bull that came down on the Tarryall road about 150l. Severe
al people on Tarryall saw him and Ranger Fitssimmons tracked
him off in the country toward the head of Allen Creek to get
sight of hims "Unole Jimmy Davis™ says he later found his
carckss on the north slope of Badger mountain near the top.
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(mtl by Mrs. Ce 8. All.ﬂ)

There was a large number of deesr and mountein sheep
in the regions In about 1872 five elk were killed by hunters
at the head of Allen Creek, and Mr, Allen hauled them oute
Mre. Allen shot a buffalo on Sand Creek near Tarryall but never
went to Lost Park to hunts. There were no trout in Tarryall
and very few suckers. Bordens took two wagons and barrels and
drove over to the Platte River and seined out some trout and
brought them to Tarryall Creek in 1872 or 1873,

About 1874 or 1876 soeb got into the mountain sheep
of the region and practically all were wiped ocuts The disease
was noticed in the falls A few survivors were seen in the
spring and were apparently all right. Volves came through
only ococasionally. Mountain lions have always been plentiful
among the mountain sheep and have done lots of damage. Mrs.
Allen heard of moose being seen in the Badger mountain reglon
but none of her family ever saw them.

People of the Plkes Peak region tried to get a shipe
ment of elk from the Jeokson Hole country in FWyoming in 1911
a8 there was a shortage of feed in the northern country at that
time. They were refused, however, as the people of the north
were going to feed the elk hay during the wintere

South Park Region

Geme was plentifule. Buffalo were quite numerous over
the entire parke: The last buffalo in the park were killed in
18858 in lost Parks The kKilling was done by a taxidermist from
Leadville, BHe was arrested, and the heads and hides were con-
fisocateds It is not known whether he received a fine for this
offense, There were thousends of antelope in the parke. During
the summer some of them would work up into the parks along the
¥osquito range. Thirty or forty head are all that remain of
the thousands that onoe grased in the park. Mountslin sheep and
deer were also numberous. While bear were never very plentiful,
they werse ococasionally killed by the hunters.

Only one bear seems to have gained & reputation worth
mentioninge This bear was called "old Mose™, Sev.ral hunters
tried to kill him but wers unsucocessful. In 1383 Jake Radoliff
and two others were hunting on Black Mountain. Radoliff was
separated from the other hunters. They heard him shoot and
shout for help. When the othor two hunters arrived they found
him badly crippled. The bear was not in sighte The wounded
man was ocarried to a ranch and a doctor oalled from Peirplay.
Radoliff died before the doctor arrived. He stated before he
died that the bear had attacked him and that he had shot him
once. About ten years later two hunters, one by the name of
Anthony and the other W. He Pig:, were hunting. They came up
with the bear., Anthony had a 39=40 caliber rifle. He shot the
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bear seven times before he finally killed hime The bear charged
Anthony end was close to him when he finally dropped. It is ree
ported the bear weighed 1700 pounds. An 0ld bullet wound was
found in his shoulder. It is supposcd that this is where Rade
oliff shot hime.

Muoch commercial hunting was done during the first
yvears that settlers oame to the park. One group of hunters
brought only the hind quarters and loins to market. The ree~
mainder of the ocarocass was left where it was shot. Commercial
hunting oceased by 1870.

D-VFLOPMENT

Sentiment Toward Reserves

The sentiment toward the oreation of the early forest
reserves was very bitter from all standpoints. It was not oen=-
tered on any one forest but included the Forest § rvice in gen=
eral. As & result of this feeling each forest had its individe
ual battles to fight and problems to solve. The following ex=
cerpts are typical examples of the general attitude toward the
reserves.

From the Denver Republiocan, May 24, 1908

Spesking of Forest Service and Reserves

“It is only an exsmple of governmental assininity
or possibly the orestion of & "Job™ for some favorite and is
an outrage on the hardy pioneers who have entered that desert

N country with a desire to open up and develop resouroces much
e more valuable than these trees, which should be left open to
o appropriation and use of the "present", not the future gener-
B ation.
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"Byt such things as this are convinoing to s stue-
dent of politiocal economy that the Forest Service is & the~
oretical and entirely unrelisble bureau as at present cone
stituteds It is & political play to the grendstend, a bait
set to oatch the Socialist vote.”

And agsine-Denver Republicaen, May 30, 1508.

"I recogniss much good in the Forest Service, even
as administered by Mre Pinchot and blindly supported by tire
Stone, and I repeat that I am not oriticiting Forest Reserves,
nor forestry, nor the Forest Service except where it is a
sham and a false pretense and deceiving the people."

Exoerpt from the Denver Republioan, June 6, 1908

"But the forestry bureau beats them alle When cir-
ocular 129 was formulated ¥r. Pinchot mist have started the
young man figuring, end then strolled up to the White House
to play tennis, but got so busy whispering into Teddy the
firsts's ear sabout there being but one "It" ia the United 'tates
and 1t wore glasses and haé teeth, and that he worshipped it;
that he forzot the poor boy figuring on the oircular snd the
wnfortunate fellow figured clesr around himeclf."

The above referring to a cirocular pgiving stetistics concern-
ing timbsr production between 13880 and 1906,

July 11, 1908««Denver Post

(Headlines).ss"Foresters denounced as Thieves Who
Prey upon the lHelpless Homesteader and Pooket Profit.

ess”A sweeping change in the organisetion of the
forest service, whioh will result in the moving of the greater
part of the foroe to the actual scenes of operations in the
west, will be put into operation at an early date.

"The cities selected for these division headquare
ters are San Franoisco, Denver, Selt Lake, Portland, Missoula,
Montena and Albuquergue, New Mexioco."

But in spite of all the copposition the reserves were
oremted and sstablished on a firm basis. No "Sweeping chenges
in the organisation®™ wore made but the changes were gradual
and terded to meke the "buresu" more strong snd organised.

P O Can
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Creation of the Pike Forest

The Pikes Peak and White River were the first two
forests created in Colorados The Pikes Puak Timber Reserve
was withdrewn by proclamation Fedbruary 11, 18982, and included
184,320 aores of land surrounding Pikes Peak. On June 23 of
the same year 179,000 mcres lyinz to the north of this traot
were withdrewn as the Plum Creek Timber land Reserve, and on
Dscember 9 of this same year 883,620 aores of land inocluding
what is now the central pert of the Pike National Forest were
withdrawn as the South Platte Forest Reserve. By proclamation
dated December 6, 1904, 32,702 aores were eliminated and 3,641
sores added to the South Platte Forest Reserve, resulting in a
gross ares of 854,499 acres. These three tracts together with
& further addition of 878,626 aores were ocombined by proclama=
tion of May 12, 1905, which proclamstion also eliminated 14,880
acres, resulting in a net area of 1,681,667 aores and was known
as the Pikes Pesk Forest Reserve. By Aot of Maroch 4, 1907, the
name was changed to the Pike National Foreste.

On July 10, 1908 a readjustment of the boundaries
resulted in a transfer of 270,383 acres of the Pike Netional
Forest to the lLeadville and 158,680 aocres to the Arapaho Na-
tional Forest, while an area of 698,040 acres of the Ye'loine
Bow was transferred to the Pike. This adjustment, togother
with a few smaller eliminations, resulted in e gross ares of
1,457,524 acres for the Forest.

By prooclamation of August 10, 1810, & few smell
tracts were elimineted whioh further reduced the area to
1,328,000 acres. By the Act of Auzust 24, 1914, 9,580 aores
were added to be used with unreserved lands adjoining, for
park purposes by the City of Denvers Again on March 4, 1915,
16,938 aores were added for the better protection ol the
watershed from which the City of Idsho Springs obtainsg its
water supply. The gross area thus beocame 1,349,818 aores.

By Executive Order deted Jsnuary 28, 1916, a gross ares of
7,204 aores was elimineted as & result of the classificatlion
of the Lake George project, and on Ssptember 8, 1316, two seo~
tions were sdded for the protection of the watershed from which
the town of Blackhawk derives its municipal weter supply, thus
bringing the pressnt 1916 groas area up to 1,345,227 aorea.

In response to petitions from verious commerocial
organigations represonting the muniocipalities of Ft. Collins
Boulder and Longmont, and to requests from settlers and irri-
getion companies in the irrigeted diestrioct, a considersble
ares alon; the east side of the Colorado and Pike Forests was
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temporarily withdrawn by FExecutive Order of October 2, 19186,
in accordance with the provisions of the Aot of September 8,
1916 (Publio No. 282) for classifioation and pending deter=
mination &s to the advisability of inoluding within the Colo~
rado and Pike Forests such lands as may be found to be chiefe
ly valuable for the production of timber or the protection of
stream flow.

All suoch lands north of the base line, which 3s the
north boundary of the Pike, were reported on by the Colorado
and those to the south b. the Pike.

The first land cleasificetion, under the Act of
August 10, 1912, was underteken in 1914 in ooopsration with
the Bureau of Soils. The Area aelected for this work is site
uated in the southwest, portion of the Forest where the largest
proportion of agricultural land is founds This was known as
the Lake George Froject anc comprised a net forest arse of
106,338 aores. The classifioation was epproved by the Seore-
tary of Agrioulture on October 26, 1918. Three hundred and
thirty=three aores were found to be chiefly valusble for
agriculture; 262 acres ohiefly valuable for the present stand
of merchantable timber and clessificetion suspended; §,317
acres near the boundary containing 80 acres of agriculturel
land and 977 acres of alienationa were found *o0 be of such
low forest value that the area was eliminated; and the remaine
ing 99,424 acres were claseified by the Seoretary as ohiefly
valuable for forest purposes and nonlistavle under the Acts of
June 11, 1908 and August 10, 1912.

Sinoe the Act of June 11, 1908, became effective
approxinstely 14, 707,74 acres have been gegregated and mude
available for farm purposes in the Lake George region. Praoe
tically every trect of possible agrioultural value has either
been patentec Or opened to entry, and many applioations huve
been received for lands whioh were not chiefly valuable for
Agriculture. The authentic history of this part of the forest
and the surrounding ocountry dates basok to the expedition of
Lisutenant Zebulon M. Pike who in 1808 with a little bend of
explorers passod up Currant (reek across the land described
(southwest part of the forest and South Park) and out into
South Park in the course of his travels which were for the
purpose of locating the headwatexs of the Arkensas anc South
Platte Riverses
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The Pike comprises portions of Boulder, Gilpin,
Joefferson, Clear Crsek, Park, Cougzlas, El Paso end Teller
Counties, Colorado, end lies on the eastern slope of the
Continentsl Divide which forms the west boundary of the
north portion. Its greatest length from north to south is
sbout ninety miles and the zreatest width a little more
than r{ifty miless The topography ie generally rough and
brokens The peneral formation is granite.

Oving to the excitement caused by the disocovery
of #old in 1869, there was a eneral westward movement which
resulted in the building up of seversl minin; towna &t en
early dates Central City, Gsorgstown, Idlaho Srpings end
Bleckhawk lie in the norshern part of the Forest. These
oanmps and the established eities of Denver, Colorado Springs
and smaller towns oresated s demand for farm products snd ep-
proximately 98,000 acres were homesteaded before the oreation
of the Forest. Huch lené within the forest hae been llsted
for entry under the Forest Homestead Act. Of the former
amount about 20 per cent now lie fallow anddbendoned and
nearly all farming ocommunities have dwindled in the mountaine
ous country, many to such an extent that schools have been
closed,

The Forest conteins many pleces noted for their
scenic besutry, such as Pikes Peak, Platte Canon, Cheyenne
Cenon, Clear Creek (Inoluding the famous Georgetown Loop),
the radium springs, eto., the Boulder Cenons, Mt. Fvans and
many other points of incerests. Prom the earliest use of the
country by hunters, trappers enc people merely "roughing it"
the recr-ation festure has developed and bSscome commerocielle
ized until 4t now constitutes one of the principal resources.
Denver and (oloredo Springe are ocities of large populations
in themselves, whose people neturally look to the immediate
mountainous areas near at hand for summer homes, camping,
fishing, exoursions and all forms of recreation. But aside
from this these cities are tourist centers visited annually
by thousands of people, wsny of whom snend some time in the
nearby mountainse The recr ational use has increased rapide
ly of late and promises in the near future to be of benefit
to more people than any other uss of the forest.

The advent of the railroads in 1870 and 1872 with
the consequent settling of the valleys, whioch became very
productive under irrigation, lowered prioes to such an ex-
tent that ranching became unprofitable except in oconnection
with stock raising, end nowhere is eagriculture alone success~
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ful. Meny homesteads have been converted into summoer resorts
and summer cotteges have been oonstructed to rent to tourlsts
and thie use is increasing rapidly. The subsequent use mace
of listed traots, in a srest many instances, shows that this
has been the motive which prompted the applicetions. Nine
reilroads operated within the forest and all had scenic ate-
tractionse No:foreat in Colorsdo sttracts so many pleesure
seekars and 1t is of utmost importanna that the government
retain cwnership of end maintain control of camping nlaces
and points of scenio beauty and resort velue.

Reoreation

Reoreation, although a development of recent years,
was given some thought end was recognized as far back ss 1908
by the people of the region. An excerpt from the Lenver Re=-
publican of September 14, 190B, gives some idea of the attie
tude at that timee. :

"eselt should be recognized by opponents as well as
advoontes of %r. Pinchot's volicy that the eim of the bureau
is to preserve the forests and at the seme time make them use-
ful to the people, There is no thought of guerding them from
destruction simply for sentimental coneiderations, slthough
the beauty of the mountain groves should not be ignoreds That
whioh contributes to the plessure of living, as well as ocon-
siderations of a strictly eoonomie character, should be kept
in mind. 8o the beauty of the forests should be recognized
as one of the romsons for preserving them, but it is by no
means the only or for that mstter the chief consideration.”

A report was mado to the District Forester in 1908
by the Supervisor of the Forest in which it was estimeted
that about one hundred thousand people us«d the Plke for rece
reoation during the yeare I+t was further estimated that the
use was inoreasing tem per cent ennually. The attractions
were the scenic roads and railroads, nstural features and
formations and hunting and fishinge.

An outline for a recreational recornsissance was
sent out to the supervisor in 1918, This was to get data on
the reorsation possibilities of the forests It was about this
time that the roads eand trails were given oonsideretion from
a recreation standpoint as well as from administration. Shel-
ter cabins, oemps and a little later fireplaces and other im=
provements necessary for recrcation wers aonstructed where use
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demandeds Summer homes end resorts were also beginning to

be established on the foreste The value of recreation both
from & physicel and economical stendpoint was recognized by
the fervioce, communities end oities. Varlous type of coop=
eration and development was carried on until todey recrestion
and all it implies is on par with the other forest uses,

The reorcation use on the “orest wes advartised in
1917 by folders containing the various festures and socommow
dations. The folders were distributed throughout the coun=
try. National Forest posters were also plsced where the pube
liocity would be an ald, '

Reoreation use has been inoreesing at such strides
of late that development plans have besen made for the ‘orest
which will be used as a guide toward & good finel systematized
socheme,

Irrigution

The storage and diversion of weter for domestic use,
irrigation and power esrly reeched a state of development be=-
yond the ordinary, and this is rapidly beocoming the most ime
portant of forest values.

Twelve f1lings for reservoirs for irrigation pur=-
poses have been made within the forests O0f these, six have
been construocted and are now in use. Thess sre largely site-
ueted néar the headwaters of Boulder, Clesar Creek, North
Fork of the South Plette and on Terryell Creek, although two
or three sites of considerable megnitude arec contomplated on
the mein branch of the South Platte. This storuge is entiree
ly for use slong the lower courses of these streems outside
of the Foreat.

Municipal Water Supply

Denver

The first use of water for munioipal purposes from
streams in which is now the Pike Nationel Forest was probably
at Central City and Blackhawk in the early sixties. Icdehe
Springs and Georgetown begen the usc of water s little leter.
Colorado Springs developed ite first supply from streams
emerging from the Forest on the slope of Pikee FPsak in 1878,
The City of Lenver began its first weter developrent in 1870,
The first weter was delivered from the South Platte River inm
1872 and the first Denver plant, located at Fifteenth and
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Bassett strests, began supplyinz water in thias seme year.
This plant had a capacity of 2,500,000 gallons deily. Two
years later the capaoity was inoreesed to 4,500,000 gallons
daily.

By 1378 Denver had grown so much that morc water
wes required. The Denver City Irrigatlion and Water Compeny
was organized to develop & supply fearthor up the Flatte Ri-
vere This oompany began operstions in 1830, Their plant
had a oapaoity of 8,000,000 gzallons deily. In 1882 the
capacity was inoreased to 10,000,000 gsllons daily. The
total capacity of the two nlants was the 14,500,000 gellons
deilys This supplied about 35,000 people. But by 1888 the
demand for more weter was so great that the Domestic Weter
Conpany was formed to develop water on Cherry Creek. This
company was & subsidiary of the Donver Weter Company, which
in turn was formed by a consolidation of the older companies.

Similar companies were formed betwsen 1886 and
1888 to supply water to the towns of Highlands &nd Barnume
These were independent companles.

Until this time all of the compmiles had followed
the established oustom of taking water from nesrby sireams,
though unpleasent experiences in dry yemrs had already pointed
out the inadequacy of the sources. The reservoirs in use did
not ocontain at most more than a five day's supplye

The consumption in Denver repidly inoreased to a
point where the companies wers severely taxed to supply water
in years of normal rainfalls None of the conpanies had de=
veloped an earning power and stookholders were reluctant to
invest more money in much needed expansion. Local stocke
holders, although in the minority, were laying planas to go
to the mountainas for additional water and to construct storage
reservolrs before the growth of the city was seriously hame=
pereds When these plans were made known %0 nonw-resident
e-oakholders, the latter refused to contribute their share
of the expense until the ocompanies were placed on a money=
making besis. In 1889 the situation became critioale Local
stockholders tried to Huy out the non-resident stockholders
but were unsuccessful; so they disposed of their interests,
withdrew from the companies and forming e new oconcern, The
Citiznes' Water Company, set out to obtain an ample waler
supply for the oity. '
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Before 1886 a small lake was to be found nine
miles east of Buffslo Peaks. This lake was oalled Green's
lakes The ocountry surrounding this lake was & natural
reservoir site, In 1838 some work wes done on & dams. In
1909 & company with suffiocient oapital started oonstruection
work on the dams The first construction cost was $760,000.
By the time the reservolr was completely constructed the
total cost of water rights, land rights, and construoction
was $1,000,000, The irrigation company sold this reservoir
to the City of Denver for $1,448,000.
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They first used the underflow of the South Platte
where it leaves the Canon for the plainse This water,
through a thirty inch conduit twenty-three miles long, sup-
plied a 24,000,000 gallon reservoir on the north side. Withe
in four years this company had built a second oconduit, thire
ty=four inches in diameter, and installed the first artifie
oial filteration plant west of the Hiasiassippi River. It
had purchased the Marston lLake site and constructed a million
gallon reservolr to insure a supply when that available from
natursal resources wag low. The rights to storsze water to sup=
ply the reservoir from Bear Creek were obtaineds. It had also
laid plans for the conatruction of Cheesman Leke. These uce
tivities marked the real beginning of the development of an
adequate water supply for the oitye.

N After a sories of oonsolidatlons umong the various
water companies of Denver, the plants of the Citizens' Water
Company and its remaining competitor, the American Weter Come
pay, (then in receivership) were purchased in Octo-er 1894
by the Denver Union Weter Company.

In Jeanuary 1894, the South Platte Canel and Reserw
voir Company was organized as a subsidiary company to the
Citizens' Water Company to build Cheesman Dam and extend the
properties of the Citiszens Water Company at Platte Canon.
Sinoce 1894 the Denver Union Water Company and the South Platte
Cenal and Reservoir Compeny have oocupied the field, The
Reservolr Company built Cheesman Dem, oresting a reservoir
with a capacity of some twenty~-sk billion gallons. The
seme compeny built the Platte Canon Reservoir with a capaoity
of three hundred million gellons and the English slow send
Yo filter plant at Platte Canon. The Denver Union Water Company
e now leases all of the Res:rvoir Company's properties,

Leke Cheesman is the bulwark of the Water Company's
storage system insuring the city & supply for more than two
yeare of drought without replenishing. Cheesmsan is an ideal
storage reservoir for water for domestic use. It ias loomted
fifty miles from Denver in the heart of the Pike Natiomal
Foreste It has & watershed embraoing eighteen hundred square
miles of territory. Its storsze depth is two hundred twelve
feet; 1ts clroumference at highewater mark is eighteen miles,

Colorado Springe

The City of Coloredo Springs was inoorporated in
1871 The first oity water-works were started in 1878. The
olty's populetion at this time wes four thousande Prior to
this time wells in and near the city had furnished the needed
water,.
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The first work consisted in laying a main from
 Ruxton Creek above Manitou to a reservolr in West Colorado
Springs, From the reservolr the weter was distributed to
the oity through twelve inoh meins. In 1886 a nine million
gallon reservoir was constructed on the Yesa in West Colo~
rado Springs. In 1889 a new sixteen inch main was laid from
the intake to Colorsdo Springse. Also a ten inch pipe was
put in for conveying water from Bear Creek to intercept the
main from Manitou., By 1850 the supply was inadequate, and
a ¢itch was bullt whioch diverted the water from Midile Beaver
Creek to the head of Ruxton Creek. In the same year the ocity
soquired by Congressional grant 784.48 acres of land adjacent
to Lake Moraine and began construction of the Lake Moraine
dem, This lake is n part of the present storage system. In
the same yeer a pipe line was laid to secure additionel wae-
s ter from Beaver Creek watershede In 1891 additional land
was purchased elong Ruxton Creek. Lske Moraine dem was come
pleted during this year, giving a storage capsocity of
492,168,000 gallons.
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1898 saw & threatened weter famine in the clity.
Nearly a mile of flume wes constructed to bring water from
& different branch of Beaver Creek. Alszo work was begun on
the dam for Reservoir No. 2. This dem, completed the followe
ing year, gave & reservolir capacity of ninety-seven million
gallons. In 1896 & pipe line was laid from North Cheyenne
Creek to Bear Creek, and dams were started for Resservoirs
Nos. 7 end 8. These dems were completed in 18398 with resere
voir oapacities of seventy-five million and four hundred
seventy-two million gallons respeotively.

In 1896 Colorado Springs purchased from the govern=-
ment 3,100.14 acres for the better protection of its water
supply. In the same yeer the Strickler Tunnel wes begun.
This carries water from Reservoirs Nos. 7 and 8 on VWest
Beaver Creek to Middle Beaver, where it is availsble for
clty use. In 1902 the oity moquired six hundred acres of
land known as the Seven Lakes property. In the same year
twenty~two hundred ecres more of government land were pur-
ohagede In 1904 and 1908 reservoirs Nos. 4 ani & of the
Seven lakes system were oonstructed. Reaervoir 4 developed
leaks in the dam, whioh prevsnted utiliszation of the water.
In 1903 and 1904 the St. John tunnel was constructed for
the purpose of carrying all of the water supply from ¥iddle
Beaver and its various reservoirs to Lake Yoraine near the
head of Ruxton Creek. In 1924 and 1925 a new pipe line from
Lake doraine to the hydro plent near Manitou was lald,
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The entire Colorado Springs water supply comes
from land within the forest boundary., It ls protected
either by oity ownership or by woperative sgreement with
the Forest Service.

Reforestation

Reforestation oceme in for its share of publioity
anc criticism eas well as the uses in the forests. The fol-
lowing is an article from the Tenver Republiocan of June 28,
19081

PeeeIf the department were not so given to "Grande
‘stand"™ talk it would behoove the citisens of Colorado Springs
to bring an injunotion sult ageinst the government, which
threatens to plant a million trees per year until twenty mile
lion are plented on the Pikes Pesk “Reserve", Water is scarce
snough at Colorado Springs at present conditions, but if the
government ig going to attempt to water twenty million trees
in addition to the trees now abaorbing weter, I cen assure
the ocitigzens that in twenty years there would only be water
for the trees and none for the citye.

"1+ would inorease the water asupply of Colorado
Springs meterially if every tree was cut from Plkes Peak.
If these men sxpsot to raise trees without using up water
they purpose to reverse nature.

"These so=-celled timber reserves originated in
fraud end sre continued in iniquity, end should be reduced
to the hinting and fishing preserves which originelly was
intended."

A report on the problem of reforestation in the
Pikes Peek Foreet Resorve wes made by W, He. Gardner, Forest
Asgistant in 1908. The examination wes msde during the sume
mer and fall by a field party of the Bureau of Forsetry (as
it was then ocalled) to investigete the condition of the
southern portion of the 'ikes Peak Forest Reserve. The ob=-
Jeot of the study was to find out to what extent the denuded
slopes of this region were naturally reforesting and to lo=-
cate areas where planting wes necessary.

Two methods of accomplishing the desired results
were edopteds One was by sowling the seed of the trees ocom-
mon to the ereas desired to reforest and the other by transe
planting seedlings raised et the nurseriess
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At first the work was experimental but after nearly
complete loss of some of the work and ocareful atudy, the Fore
est offiocers in charge were enabled to formulate oertain prine
oiples which put ths reforestation work upon a definite and
practioal basis.

The first field planting was done in 19056 with yele
low pine and Dougles fir seedlinga two yeara old in Clemanw
tine Gulch below Clyde. Seeding was done the same year in
the same localities. The efforts were fallures.

In 1908 two year old Douglas fir seedlings were
planted in Clementine Gulch and nlso in Bear Creek near Jones
Parke This work was & failure also except for a small plot
on lower Bear Creoek where & fifty per cent survival was
obtained.

In 1907, 1508 and 1909 experimental planting of
seedlinss and direct seeding was done in the vieinity of
Palmer Lake in Limbaugh Cenone Seedlingas two and three years
0ld were planted. Thess were shipped from Halsey, Nebraska,
ané received in poor condition. However, food results were
obtained. Some fall planting in 1908 shows zood results.
Favorable results were had with fall sowing of Douglas fir
saed where broadcasting and raking wers employed under aspen.
Gamrally, however, all direct seeding resulted in failures.

Direot seeding was used from 1810 to 19812 inolu=-
sive on a large scals notwithstanding +ie failures. These
efforts likewlse proved to be fellures. Stronger leaning
toward transplant nursery stock was mada. As a result lite
tle or no seeding was done after 1912 and all efforts were
centered on field plantinge. The deep hole (with grub hoe)
mothod was used and it is still the principal method.

Sinoce 1812 planting of seedlings has been estabe
lished on a soletific basis end more than two million trees
have heen planted.

A planting plan for the Pikes Peak Auto Highway
was made in 1917. This called for planting on the ocuts and
f1lls of the roads It was really an experiment but planting
done by the planting camp in 1917, 1818 and 1919 proved to
be a success.
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Rurseries

As a result of egtudies and recommendations made by
W. He Gardner, Forest Assistant, in 1908, the Buresu of Fore
estry sent T. J. Tsylor, Forest Agent, and Clyde Leavitt to
locate and establish several nurseries in the spring of 1904
within the arees studied by Mr. Gerdner.

The Clyde, Rogemont and Bear Creekx nurceries were
sptablished. They were not operated long, however, bscause
of the slow growth, short growing se¢sson and insccessibllity.
A little improvement was done such as starting a wetoer sys-
ten, etos They were sbandoned one by one. The Rosemont was
closed in 1908, Clyde in 1807 and then the Beer Creek in 18508.

The few surviving trees at Rosemont (411) were transe
plentsd at Clyde where a to%al failure resulted. About seven
thousand two yesr old seedlings wers teken from Clyde and
transplanted at Boar Croeek in the spring of 1907. These
trecs all finally died in the nursery. When the Bear Creek
nursery was abendoned in the spring of 1809, the few thousand
seedlings (about ten thousand) were taken to the Honument
Nursery and placed in transplent bedse.

The following men were closely connected with the
nursery work at this time:

W. H. Cardner 1908
T« Jo Taylor 1304
Clyde Leavitt 1904
F. W, Besley 1908
(BeS+HReB.He DoAtlomend 1808 (D'allemend 1)
F. W, Resley 1008
Jo Fo Kummel 1908
8. Be Detwiter 1806
W. He Schrader 1806

late in the fall of 1906 the site on which the Mone-
ument Nursery is now located was examined with the result that
it was cecided to establish a small planting station te be
knowr. as the t. Hormen Ranger Xursery. It retained this name
until Jsnuary 1, 1908, after which time it has been known as
the Monument Nurserye. The development work has been with the
idea of making it a large central nurserye.
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Fremont Experiment Station

The Fremont Fxperiment Station on Ht. Manitou waa
founded in September 1909+ Earlier that yeer, Carlos G. Bates
examined certain areas within the olty watershed of Colorado
Springs end had attempted to negotiate with the City Commis~
sioners for a looation near Mountain View, but the restrioce
tions necessarily placed on the Forest Service ococupation of
the city's land would have hampered the work; so the prospeots
of looating in this vioinity did not look very promising for
a time. Then during & visit in August, it was discovered that
the present site of the station, whioh hed already been re=-
served by the Forest Scrvioce for use as e ranger station, was
admirably suited for the purpose. This helped to speed the
work when three men started operations in September, The men
were C. G. Bates and two temporary employees of the Forest
Service who had been working in Nebraska, South Dakota end
Wyoming during the summer. One waz the szon of Dre Rupp of
Monument and the other & Permaylvenia boye

The first work was the ocarrying of & rain soaked
tent from the top of the Incline to the present station site,
whioh is sbout & mile. The men were nearly exhausted when
they finally reached the grounds. The men oft:n wondered
why they did not hire one of the many burros that were, and
still are, kept at the top of the Inocline.

About two days after the establishing of the camp,
the party was increased by Albin G. Hamel, now supervisor at
Pueblo, U. 8. Stafford of Colorsdo Springs, Joe Strong, who
for several years had been stationed at Lake Horaine end who
was & practioal mounteineer, and "Uncle Jimmy" Cridbs, a
Civil War veteran who died here about two years ago. The
two older men were good compsanions in ocamp as well as belng
hardeheaded enough to serve as s cheok on the youthful en-
thusiasm of the othera.

The first improvement was the development of a
water systems A good spring above the location selected
for the buildings was piped to the looation seven hundrsd
feet distant, A small dem was construoted to form a pool
at the spring. The pipe was placed in a ditch four feet
deep.

A flag pole was also erested at this time.
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The station was named in honor of General Fremont,
one of the early explorers of tie country and who built a
trail in the loeality. The Indian word, ™inneyamini" mean=-
ing three waters, was suggested but was considered cumbersome
and meaningless by the authoritiess therefore, it was not se-
leoted.

During the sutumn of 1909, one building had been
constructed. It was a light frame sturoture which at firet
served as office and living room, and as office and labora-
tory until 1918, Stafford ococcurpied this dbuilding for a time
but was joined by Cs Cs Chapman before Christmase. Chapman
later instslled the "tower®™ and westher apperatus, which is
still in use, while he was in the U. S. Geologioal Survey.
The complete weather record was bsgun January 10, 1910, and
except for two or three bmmks has been kept complete sinos.

William D. Hayes, a technioally trained forester
was sent from New Mexioo to take charge of the loeal work in
February 19810 C. G. Bates was gtationed in Denver at the
time and oould give only general supervision. Hayes remsined
at the station three years, during which time the work was
well under way. He was an expert on planting and through
his efforts experiments conducted showed the way to success«
ful planting in the region. The greenhouse and barn were
built also through his efforts and & heating plant installed
to make possible the use of the greenhouse throughout the
winter. One of the largest jobs at that time was the testing
of seed which was being colleoted and sown all over the dis~
triot,.

F. Bs Notestein, Forest Examiner, took charge of
the work in 1913. He was a oapable man but was soon transe
ferred.

The next inoumbent lasted only a few months and
those the summer months of 1918, His training and temper-
ment were unfitted for the rough life of the mountains and
before the first frosts of the autumn he sought s warmer
olime. He wired Mr. Bates as follows: "Leaving tomorrow
to oatoh boat for s Come snd take your dinged old sta=-
tiong I don't want

When this man quit, ¥r. Bates assumed direct charge
of the werk end the result is that the work has besn broadened
and is more extensive, The offices were moved from Denver to
Colorado Springs in 1919 which established the staff right on
the grounds. (See 1980 comments by J« Roeser on following
inserted page.)
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"The offices were moved around 1920 or 22, I believe."

J. Roeser, Jre. assigned to Station §/8/19 and except for
two years, 7/1920 to 6/1922 spent as staff assistant on Pike, re=-
mained with Fremont Station (later Rocky Mountain Experiment Ststion)
through 1935, when Station headquarters were transferred to Fort
Collins under expanded Rocky Mountain Forest and Range Experiment
Station setup. Roessr closed the Station in October 1936. Im=
provements were subsequently sold and dismantled during World War
II (about 1945).

Batea, founder of Station, was transferred to Forest
Produots laboretory, Medison, Wiso. in 1927 and in 1928 moved on
to the Lakes States Experiment Station. He died in August, 1949.

The Experiment Station office in the Post office, Colo.
Springs, (N.B. corner, 2nd floor) was taken over by the Pike when .
the Stetion office was transferred to Fort Collins in October, 1938
Roeser returned to Administration in October, 1938, serving on the
Harney 10/1938 to 12/45, Roosevelt 12/45 to 6/49, and returned to
the Pike as Assistent Supervisor 9/1/49.

-
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Deviis Head lookout

The firat lookout station at Devil's Head was ss~
tablished in 1912, A small log eabin was constructed on top
of the Pesk where the lookout could to in ocase of a storm.
The telephone was placed in this ocabin also.

A table with a fire finder was placed on the highe
est boulder and bolted to it as the hi-h winds would blow the
table away otharwise,

A shslter cabin was built at the foot ¢f the rocks
ebout two hundred feet helow the lockout cabine From this a
trail led down to & ocamp at the foot of the peak. The trail
was three=-quarters of a mile long.

Big trees were placed in such a manner that they
were used for stair oconstruction from the foot of the houlders
near the shelter ocabin to the top.

This station was mainteined for many years. In 1914
2 one room shingle=-roof cabin was bullt at the foot of the
stalrs leading to the observatory.

In 1919 the old log barn, whish had a slab roof
originally, was converted into & store and bunkhouse. The
oabin built in 1914 weas then abandoned.

The seme year a glass observetory ten feet by ten
feet was constructed on top of the peak. It was completely
equipped for fire lookout purposes end is the one that is
still used.

WbrkiqﬁvPlan

The general reconnaissance work for the development
of a working plan began on the Pike Augustl, and continued
until November 1, 1908, Estimating and mapping by a oruise
through the oenter of eaoh forty were made. The topography
was also axetched in and dis*ances pecede The work was done
in Clear Creek, Park and Douglas Counties. The work is siven
in a report by Josaph A. Fitzwater.

Another plan was made in Jenusry 1910 by John Bentley,
Jre, Forest Assistant, and one in 1810 by Henry Reinsch, For-
ost Experte MNr. Reinsch made another the following summer
(1911).
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